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HIGHLIGHTS
P

2014/15 ) 2013/14 Increase/(Decrease)
2014/15% 201314 g/ (i)
%
Operating results (HK$’000) BEXE(GERTR)
Revenue 9N 214,950 053171 (38.212) (15.1)
Gross profit EX 122,663 142,341 (19,678) (13.8)
Profit for the year FREF 11,051 49,704 (38,653) (77.8)
Profitability (%) BFREN (%)
Gross profit margin EH= 57.1 56.2 0.9 1.6
Net profit margin R 5.1 19.6 (14.5) (74.0)
Return on equity BRAEIHRE 313 52.7 (49.4) (93.7)
Return on total assets BEERRE 3.1 314 (28.3) (90.1)
Liquidity nHER
Current ratio (time) MENLLE (15) 11.4 18 9.6 533.3
Quiick ratio (time) REPLLE (13) 10.7 16 9.1 568.8
Inventory turnover (days) RERE(X%) 63.1 49.8 13.3 26.7
Trade receivables turnover (days) B HRNGIERE
(X&) 45.7 42.1 36 8.6
Trade payables turnover (days) BEZENFERE
(X&) 52.1 487 5.4 116
Per share data SRS
Eamings per share — basic BREMN — EX
(HK cents) (51l) 1.60 8.8 (6.68) 80.7)
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRS (BIL) 1.00 N/ARE A N/ATER N/ARE A
J
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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the RAFmMF - BrXESZBFEIN - T

DEFINITIONS

following terms and expressions shall have the meanings set out ~ M#AEEE A AR ©

below.

“Audit Committee”
“Board”

“Brand Development

and Management
Segment”

((BVlu

“Company”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

“Director(s)”

“Genwealth”

“Group” or
“Hin Sang Group”

the audit committee of the Company

the board of Directors

[EZERBE] H ARRERZREE

[EFg] H EFE

B

=

k=

the business segment in which the [mEFAER £ AEEXZZEmE#EER
Group purchases primarily personal care EIESER] ARBEEAZBERE RN

products

the British Virgin Islands

ey

products from the brand proprietors and LEBERABRZEE
manage and develop the brand of such

[RBREX H RBREIEHS

Z R EE D

DD

Bl
Hin Sang Group (International) Holding BN ¥ ?ﬁi’g@(ﬂ R)ERE
Co. Ltd. PTAERE (BIFR) mIRAR A PRATF - —fER20104F
an exempted company incorporated Wlth 10 ﬂ 28 BEREES
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on .&Hﬁﬁ)uz HEBR

28 October 2010

gl

has the meaning ascribed thereto under [ZARARR] B EWARAE T 2%

the Listing Rules and, in the context of £ RAQEME o
the Company, means each of Mr. Pang, RIIE L - EAKRK
Mrs. Pang and Genwealth e

the director(s) of the Company [£%] B ARRES
Genwealth Group Holding Company [$T& ] B TEEEERBERA

Limited (PTE S @ #ZE R B R A A
company incorporated with limited liability
on 5 October 2010 in the BVI, the issued
shares of which are owned as to 90% by
Mr. Pang and 10% by Mrs. Pang, and is

a Controlling Shareholder

the Company and its subsidiaries

Al — fA R 20109 10

ASHEXRBRIES

MK 2 BRAE

HERTRMBZRE
REZRK D BIFER 90%

% 10% @ W APERAR R

[AEEIsk & ARFAMEKEAT

[PT4HSE ]

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE
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DEFINITIONS
B

“Hin Sang Holding”

“Hin Sang Hong (HK)”

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
"HK$"

“Listing”

“Listing Rules”
“Macau”

“Mr. Pang”

“Mrs. Pang’

“PCM”

“Period”

“PRC” or “China”

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited
(PTHEEBIZERAERAR]), a company
incorporated with limited liability on
11 September 2006 in the BVI and
directly wholly owned by the Company

Hin Sang Hong Company Limited ($7 4
77 A R A 7)), a company incorporated
with limited liability on 13 June 1996 in
Hong Kong and wholly owned by Hin
Sang Holding and an indirect subsidiary
of our Company

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong

the listing of the Shares on the Main
Board

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the Macau Special Administrative Region
of the PRC

Pang Siu Hin (Z497), an executive
Director and a Controlling Shareholder

Kwan Lai Man (B5E), the spouse of
Mr. Pang, an executive Director and a
Controlling Shareholder

proprietary Chinese medicine, as defined
in the Chinese Medicine Ordinance
(Chapter 549, the Laws of Hong Kong)

the year ended 31 March 2015

the People’s Republic of China which,
for the purposes of this annual report,
excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

[ TR

[ £

[ LR A

[P ]

[Zre4t]

[ZAK]

[

[ 7K HAfE |

reb |
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“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

“Product Development
Segment”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Share Option Scheme”

“Stock Exchange”

“Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical”

“Trading of Goods
Segment”

the Pre-IPO share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 25 September 2014

the business segment in which the Group
develops own personal care products,
health supplements and household
products sold under our own brands,
including but not limited to “Beautymate
(ZEWOFE)”, “Hin Sang ($74)”, “King’s
Antiseptic (328 £ )” and “On-guard (%

%)

The Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of
HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the
Company

the shareholder(s) of the Company

the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 25 September 2014

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited (A1 E R 2% (HE)H
R 2 dl]), a company incorporated with
limited liability on 6 April 2009 in Hong
Kong and is wholly owned by Mr. Pang
and Mrs. Pang.

the business segment in which the Group
engages in trading and distributing skin
care products, personal care products
and household products purchased
from various authorised dealers and
independent traders or directly from
suppliers

DEFINITIONS
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Pang Siu Hin (Chairman)
Kwan Lai Man
Mok Tsan San

Non-executive Director
Wong Wai Ling
Independent non-executive Directors

Lee Luk Shiu
Tang Sing Hing, Kenny
Tsui Nam Hung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lee Luk Shiu (Chairman)
Tang Sing Hing, Kenny
Tsui Nam Hung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Tsui Nam Hung (Chairman)
Kwan Lai Man

Lee Luk Shiu

Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (Chairman)
Kwan Lai Man

Lee Luk Shiu

Tsui Nam Hung

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Flat B, 12/F., Hi-Tech Centre
11 Wang Yip Street West
Yuen Long

New Territories

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

COMPANY SECRETARY

Choy Suk Man

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Kwan Lai Man
Choy Suk Man

LEGAL ADVISERS

Hastings & Co.
Chak & Associates

AUDITOR
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd.

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.hinsanggroup.com
SECURITIES CODE
Equity: 6893.hk

ENQUIRES

Company:

Email: contact@hinsanggroup.com

Public Relations Consultant:

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
Email: HSH_enquiry@sprg.com.hk
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
v 2k

As at 31 March 2015 201543 H31H

PTHEER (BR) EIRBRAF
Hin Sang Group (International) Holding
Co. Ltd.

TTHEEBRERER AR
Hin Sang Group Holding Limited

BB S BEREAY
alE (BE) BRAR PTETARAT] Beautvmate BRAT Hona Kon
Chong Sang (HK) Hin Sang Hong g - -

- Hong Kong Medicine :
- I Hong Kong Limited ) Pharmaceutical &
Company Limited Company Limited Manufactory Holdings Research Institute

Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.

HM Advertising
Company Limited

100% 100% 100%

BB
BRAH
Hong Kong
Pharmaceutical &
Research Institute
Co., Limited

PTHETE 5 ORI
INE
Pt @it e
Yaome Nihon
Corporation

Hin Sang Hong
Trading (Shenzhen)
Limited

Beautymate
International Limited
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OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in developing, marketing, selling
and distributing a wide variety of personal care products (mainly
consisting of bath and shower gels, shampoos and conditioners,
and skin care products), health care products (mainly consisting of
health supplements including but not limited to child specific milk
supplements, dietary supplements, appetising teas, nutritive drinks,
cough and cold remedies, herbal teas and medicated oils) and
household products (mainly consisting of laundry detergents and
antiseptic germicides) under various brands.

Our business operations are mainly based in Hong Kong though
we have appointed distributors to help selling and distributing the
products under our own brands mainly in the PRC, Taiwan and
Macau.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Group has three business segments classified by their ownership
and licensing rights: (i) Product Development Segment in which
the Group develops own products sold under our own brands; (i)
Brand Development and Management Segment in which the Group
purchases from the brand proprietors and manage and develop the
brand of such products; (i) Trading of Goods Segment in which the
Group engages in trading and distributing products purchased from
various authorised dealers and independent traders or directly from
suppliers.

Product Development Segment

We leverage on our distribution and sales experience to develop our
own health care products, personal care products and household
products sold under our various brands owned by us including “Hin
Sang (74)”, “Beautymate (FEWLDFR)”, “Yanwaili (E &%)”, “Shuang
Long (E£#€)”, “King’s Antiseptic (& £ )” and “On-guard (Zm)”.

THE GROUP
A

BmE

AEBEERENZEREFRE - 255 8
ERNHBRESZ ZEAEEER(TEE
BEARARE REBNEERNEEE
m)  REER(ET2eREREMED - B
BETRREEZEARDE  RAMER - B
FORHE - BB - BB EBOPA - EAKR
Kodgm) R EEMR (B BHERIRLH

SREH)
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SERAPIEER A RAEE Y ARG IE
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i EARENEBEENEBMUNES °

E 3y S

REBEEBEARENGE  AREXBO D
REEC()EmRAEDE Rittko a8 A%
EFENAAEEERmEHENB RKEMR
(i) MARFAE R EEDHE - Rk D &f - NEE
BamEREA ARBLEENFAEEHEER®D
i EmBEEDE - Rty B - AREEK
SRR HRE B ZARECHE KB
BERXEERBEHERNER °

EmBazk D a8

AEBREASEN D H R HELER - B
ZERAEEREENRELE 2 BRRIEE
mc BAREEMRREER  ZFmi2
BREIMTE] TR0 TERE] - [#8
Bl IREEIRIRS] -
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THE GROUP
A

We start developing the “Hin Sang ($74)” brand in 2004 mainly
for our health supplements. In 2008, we started debuting skin care
products under the brand name of “Yanwaili (E/A&#:)” and in 2009,
the brand of “Beautymate (£ Al @ %)”, which had subsequently
become one of our best-selling brands not long after launching.

In 2010 and 2011, we started developing our health care products
under a number of newly developed brands such as “l love BB”,
“Happy Baby (FEZ B)”, “Yin Sang (&£4)” and “Shuang Long (E5E)”.
We expect that these brands will gradually pick up to complement
and further strengthen our Group’s market share in health care
products.

During the Period, we outsourced the production of all our own-
branded products to external manufacturers in Hong Kong, the PRC
and Taiwan.

Brand Development and Management Segment

We have a proven history of managing and developing a number of
brands for our brand proprietors (who are mainly manufacturers and
brand proprietors of the products) in respect of their personal care
products mainly in the market in Hong Kong since 1999. We entered
into an exclusive distribution agreement with each of the brand
proprietors and provided them with one-stop marketing, sales and
distribution, logistic and delivery services for their branded products.
All the brand proprietors in this Business Segment are Independent
Third Parties.

Amongst the products managed and developed by us for the brand
proprietors, the bath and shower products under the brands of “Acene
(BRE)”, “Enear (%", “Venic (fEHFR)” and “Zici (J%43K)” are well-
known to local households in Hong Kong.

REBR2004FHRBEEHERF T MRE
BI{T4 ] kR - 20084 » AEEMKEE
KR TERAE] mEIE TN EEEM ' I
72009 F AT EMNOR] R L EBER
HERBTARNKAAREBERGIEDRE

— o

M 20104F & 2011 4F + AEBERBFAEAE
E¥FE A THRER love BB]  [FFE
Bl -T&E] R IEE]IETZREER ° &
SETEHAZ S RIS S E 1 B Ko — N8
AEBRNRBERZTISHEEX -

RAHRE - AEERMEERmEERZE
ETEIMETES  TERGEZINEEE
ﬁ:ﬁ o

mEFRER R EED

AREEB 1999 F M AKE mEHEB A (K
EXTBREMmIBERMMEEBA)ER
REBTSHEZBAAREERRREER
NFZE T oY AFE LR - AEEEE
HmEEB AR LBR D H® - LARE
ZmEERRE—UATSEE #HERD
B MRRRNRES - WERBH BB M
MR AN RIBILE=TT °

AEBRMEEEANEELAEZERD -
DRE | [8BE ] [Fett 5] R DR ] Fa
AR EMER EE RREPE -
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Trading of Goods Segment

Since 1996, we have been engaged in the business of trading
and distribution of skin care products, personal care products and
household products purchased from suppliers, who are mainly
authorised dealers, suppliers and parallel importers from Taiwan,
Thailand, Indonesia, Singapore and Hong Kong. All suppliers in the
Trading of Goods Segment are Independent Third Parties.

THE GROUP
AR

EmBEEDM

REBB 1996 FRUEERMHEN(EERE
- RE - EIE - IR RE S Z HFHK
g REERRKER) KEBEEER - @
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September

BEMATEITHRI18BE - SiBEE
e TENRIRIEIS,  H—REE
RETRE  HE—(EHTAIE L -

To celebrate the 18th anniversary of
Hin Sang Hong Company Limited,
the
company’s annual dinner and spent a

staff and guests attended

memorable night together.

N | o o) PR
S B et

— 1 —

BEBHEAMRESHE RS TTEEEAIAE100
BRI TPEELAGD LRI T -

Through the participation of Stock Code Balloting for Charity
Scheme, Hin Sang Group donated HK$ 1 million to the Hong
Kong Community Chest to support charity work in the
society.

115
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v
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Major Events of Hin Sang Group in 2014/2015
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e
f nlf}ﬁifilﬂk'ﬁ

-ar

P (2R R AR AR (B HER:
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Hin Sang Croup (International) Holding
Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 6893)
officially listed on the Main Board of The

105

October

was

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

oo R R T fesey D o Moy Soany
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Hin Sang Group was awarded “Outstanding
Listed Company Award 2014” by the Hong
4 e Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and

r

Professional Commentators Limited.



t74-£m2014/2015xE k=1

Major Events of Hin Sang Group in 2014/2015

TO14 ) RIREEMFLERTESEERERR
FEAPEREMESGRBNETERE  BAF TX
MO, TMEERESENERE2014K4E > X
MR RAERYRE M -
“Hin Sang” Brand was consecutively awarded
ﬁ Hong Kong Top Brand Award by the Hong Kong
Brand Development Council & the Chinese
February Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. §
Meanwhile, “Beautymate” was also awarded the Q==
Award of Hong Kong Emerging Brand 2014,
which showed a high acceptability in the market.

B R S TTETARARBITHEERE  ROBNERItLE - ETRER &

BETEESHESTEREHERINEAERRCE - 2HTE
C A R I N G TR EN—KETE -

mmme— e Hin Sang Hong Company Limited lives up to its social responsibility and
is committed to the community, its employees and the environment. It

'-“;h has been awarded the Caring Company Honor by the Hong Kong
e Council & Social Service for 7 years consecutively. This honor is a
— ﬁ l-_; reaffirmation of Hin Sang Hong's effort in caring for the community.

PTHEEERM3 A3 BE AP RARBUTEE BT REHE I AZRY
%8N > MFEH R E SR ISEE 10808 BT ERLUER) " 2eHOMEIRER
KEEatEl, - ESTEBEI0BRERE  FEREALBILERE -
On 31st March, through the arrangements of the Liaison Office of the
Central People’s Government in the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, Hin Sang Group donated HK$10.8 million worth of products to
the New Territories Association of Societies for the “Love@Home Family
Visitation Program”. The program aimed to serve more than 100,000
families, provided necessities for the people in need.

§ R T

R . I
L b

ot

PTERBEMNIFAINBETRENS - B RETEIRELIRENETEIEBD
g rRIFEEENNBLE - NESHEBRE BABRFH - HRE
BATtE o

Hin Sang Scholarship launch ceremony was held on 31st March. The
scholarship was set up as an award scheme to sponsor the
impoverished primary students to improve their studying environment
and competitive strengths. In the future, they will be prepared to
contribute to the society.




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BN E: 8

Dear Shareholders: BAIHR -

On behalf of the board of directors of Hin Sang Group (International) AARRKXITEER (BIR) ERAERARE
Holding Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries, | am pleased to present the first FH& KERAMMBARMARRZERNEEIER
annual report of the Group as a listed company for the year ended 31 LM A A& E2015F3 A1 RIEFEN S
March 2015. NFERE °

ANNUAL REVIEW FERE

2014 is a year of great significance to the Group. First, 2014 2014FHRAKEEEEAER - 5% ' A
witnessed the ceremony of the 18th anniversary of Hin Sang Hong A FRIZEWBARITAETT (BAB) BRI 18
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. BEFHE o HX - NA T B RGN 2014 5F
Second, the Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Stock 10 A 16 B X INEE T LT - AASE R
Exchange on 16 October 2014, providing an access to the capital EZEREMHEABERATHHRE - WRKRE
market for the Group’s long-term development and improving the AASEHRERER I ARER °

public image of the Group’s brands and products.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group’s total revenue
amounted to approximately HK$215.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 15.1% from HK$253.2 million of last
year. For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recorded a net
profit of approximately HK$11.1 million, representing a decline of
approximately 77.7% from HK$49.7 million of last year.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
per Share for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

PROSPECTS

“Aspire Innovation and strive for prominency continuously” embodies
the corporate spirit of Hin Sang Group. During last year, the Company
was successfully listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, and facing tough market competition, the Group
managed to achieve outstanding performances in many respects
with a number of awards under the principal of “enhancement with
prudence”. At the same time, the Group’s brand series have enjoyed
rapid expansion, with multiple dealerships of renowned brands
attained, including “Garden Fresh” ([ #4%[® ) juice, “Veens” ([ ME
® 1) paper and “See Young” ([7%)R]) non-silicon-oil hair and scalp
treatment set. Besides, Hin Sang Group has completed its acquisition
of Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical ([ AFEZL% |) in June 2015.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to develop its product series
for children and further expand its sources of income via diversified
products. To seize development opportunities, the Group will also
make continuous efforts to provide diversified series of products for
modern consumers who have a growing awareness of health and
food safety against the backdrop of a gradually relaxing two-child
policy on the Chinese Mainland.

E-commerce will be another key development project for the Group.
This year, the Group has commenced its cooperation with multiple
E-commerce websites, including hk.suning.com, jd.com and

28

RNEERE

HE2015F3A3MHILEFE  *&E28&
WAL E215.0 B8 EBIT » REFEM253.2
BEBITHALH151% - H E2015F3 A
S1HIEFE 4RO 188t 8LF
EM49.7TBEBILRIKITT.7% -

RE

EEeRETEE2015F3A31 A 1EHIE
BEF SRR ERR B =R B 0.01 7T °

RE

[BIETTE - BkE]  RERTEEBE RS
B e KF - NGB ERKD L
- ERABEFRET BPkKE  =EE
CEZHEBUSKE - KEZELRIE : [
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720155 6 AN TERUEE [ A ZE 8% | o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BN E: 8

lalami.com, a website focusing on selling imported products.
Under the cooperation, the Group’s products will be listed on these
E-shopping websites, exposed to more potential buyers which are
boosting its income sources and profit. Furthermore, the Group
is strengthening its marketing campaign with brand planning and
publicity, in an effort to further enhance brand recognition and
influence.

On the PRC market, the health sector has emerged as a fresh
highlight of the PRC economy and displayed great vitality, market
potential and room for development, thanks to rapid economic
growth, a rising living standard and an aging population. In addition,
the State Council of the PRC, for the first time, clearly raised the
development goal that the total value of the health services should
amount to over RMBS trillion by 2020 in the Opinions on Promoting
the Growth of Medical Service Sector.

As a renowned corporate for children’s health products in Hong
Kong, Hin Sang Group has ranked top in the children’s health
product market in Hong Kong, with sustained brisk sales in South
China, Hong Kong and Macau, Taiwan and Southeast Asia. By far,
the Group has started to work on its layout across the PRC market
based on its PRC headquarters in Shenzhen. Hin Sang Group mainly
deals in proprietary Chinese medicine (PCM) products, including
traditional children’s PCM products such as Hou Tsao San (##Z %),
Bao Ying Dan ({REY) and Chut Lee San (E#E-t[EEX). Moreover,
based on traditional PCM theories, the Group has laid the foundation
to expand into the general health market with such products as Milk
Supplement, Health Star (Granules) and soft sweets series, all of
them made of natural medicinal ingredients.

With its well-established position in the Guangdong, Hong Kong
and Macau markets, the Group will proceed with its layout across
other parts of China, building its own product promotion teams and
nationwide after-sale service centers to serve our customers. By
doing so, Hin Sang Group aims to offer its general health products for
every family, serve the society and make relentless efforts to reward
the investors’ trust and support.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my gratitude to all shareholders, business partners,
customers and suppliers for their support and trust. My thanks also
go to the management and all the staff for their contribution and hard
work over the past year.

Pang Siu Hin
Chairman
30 June 2015

EViE: e

&)

AANERIBERRESTS  HEUKRER
EBBH - BEPREEEN AN FBMEE
REHE ANEHEEENEZEBETESR
E—FNERRE S -

E4
L2 g0
201646 A30H




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB i B 73 B

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Period, the Group’s revenue was approximately HK$215.0
million, representing a decrease of 15.1% as compared to HK$253.2
million for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The decrease in sales revenue was mainly due to sluggish market
conditions across the retail sector in Hong Kong in respect of the
Group’s products, primarily resulting from the “Occupy Central”
campaign from end of September 2014 to December 2014 and
the “Anti-parallel trading” campaign in early 2015. In particular,
the Group’s products have been well recognised and regarded as
popular products in great demand among China mainland travelers
to Hong Kong. It is believed that the abovementioned campaigns
had significant adverse impacts on the number of China mainland
travelers to Hong Kong as well as the sales of the Group’s products
in the heavily affected areas, which resulted in a material adverse
effect to the Group’s revenue and net profit.

During the Period, the Product Development Segment was still the
largest segment which contributed approximately 77.6% of the
Group’s revenue while it accounted for 74.6% of the total revenue
for the last financial year. The revenue contribution from Brand
Development and Management Segment decreased from 16.9% for
the last financial year to 15.7% for the Period. The Trading of Goods
Segment recorded a continuous drop in revenue and its revenue
contribution to the Group dropped from approximately 8.5% for the
last financial year to approximately 6.7% for the Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Product Development Segment

Under Product Development Segment, the Group develops and
sells personal care products, health care products and household
products under our own brand names, mainly being “Hin Sang (74)”,
“Beautymate (£ D) and “King’s Antiseptic GRE T )”.

The revenue of the segment decreased to approximately HK$166.8
million for the Period from approximately HK$188.9 million for the
year ended 31 March 2014. The Segment’s profit for the Period
was approximately HK$22.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$28.1 million or 55.5% as compared to that of the
year ended 31 March 2014. The Segment profit margin for the Period
was approximately 13.5% while the margin for the year ended 31
March 2014 was approximately 26.8%.

The aggregate revenue generated from the above three major
brands amounted to approximately HK$162.1 million for the
Period, representing 97.2% of the segment’s revenue while it was
approximately HK$185.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2014,
representing 98.1% of the segment’s revenue.

Brand Development and Management Segment

Under the Brand Development and Management Segment, the
Group sells and distributes products with exclusive distribution rights.
The three major brands of the Segment are “Acene (23)”, “Sewame
(EZ583%)” and “Venic (FEHR)”.

The segment recorded revenue of approximately HK$42.9 million
and HK$33.8 million for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015,
representing a decrease of 21.2%. The segment’s profit for the
Period was approximately HK$3.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$5.0 million or 56.2% as compared to that of the
year ended 31 March 2014. The segment profit margin for the Period
was approximately 11.5% while the margin for the year ended 31
March 2014 was approximately 20.7%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB i B 73 B

The total revenue of these three major brands amounted to
approximately HK$25.5 million and HK$20.2 million respectively
for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2015, accounting for
approximately 59.4% and 59.8% of the segment revenue of the
respective periods.

Trading of Goods Segment

Trading of Goods Segment distributes those products purchased
from authorised dealers, independent traders, manufacturers or
parallel importers and its contribution to total revenue and profit are
small when compared with another two segments.

The segment recorded revenue of approximately HK$21.4 million
and HK$14.3 million for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015,
representing a decrease of 33.2%. The segment’s loss for the Period
was approximately HK$341,000 while the segment’s profit was
approximately HK$76,000 for the year ended 31 March 2014. The
segment loss margin for the Period was approximately 2.4% while the
profit margin for the year ended 31 March 2014 was approximately
0.4%.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had a total of 158 staff as at 31 March 2015. The
employees of the Group are remunerated by way of fixed salary. The
Group has devised an assessment system for its employees and the
Group uses the assessment result for salary review and promotion
decisions. All the staff undergoes a performance appraisal once a
year. The appraisal provides the Group with an opportunity to assess
each individual staff’s strengths and areas for improvement, thereby
enabling the Group to effectively train and develop each individual
staff.

In addition, the Company adopts Share Options Scheme in
September 2014 to recognise and acknowledge those employees
who have contribution to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The Group believes that the Listing on the main board of the Stock
Exchange on 16 October 2014 could enhance its profile, while the net
proceeds from the offer of the Shares will strengthen financial position
and allow the Group to implement and execute its business plan. The
Group also believes that a public listing status will increase the public
profile of the Group’s brands and products, as well as offer the Group
access to the capital market for future business development and
strengthen its competitiveness. The Group intends to implement the
following principal strategies to expand its business and create value
for the shareholders of the Company:

a)

To explore business collaboration opportunities
with new brand proprietors

The Group plans to expand its business in the Brand
Development and Management Segment by collaborating
with more new brand proprietors, which complements the
expansion strategy. It intends to select new brand proprietors
with production bases in Southern China, in particular the
Guangdong Province, the business collaboration with new
brand proprietors can (i) strengthen both the Group’s portfolio
of brands and licensed products and the distribution network
in Hong Kong and thus help expand the distribution network to
countries outside Hong Kong such as Malaysia and Singapore;
(i) expedite the penetration of the products due to the vicinity
of their production bases to Hong Kong; and (i) increase the
market share in the personal care product market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB ki B o0 A

b)

c)

d)

22

To further expand the sales and distribution
network for own-branded products

The Group plans to expand the distribution network for own
brands by entering into exclusive distribution agreements
with distributors in other territories, mainly the PRC and other
regions and countries including Taiwan, Macau, Singapore
and Malaysia. The Group will continue to expand its business
in the PRC market in terms of the number of distributors and
its product portfolio in order to timely respond to changes
in the preferences of the customers in the PRC. The Group
also continues to expand the distribution of its own-branded
products to other provinces in the PRC and increase the
number of sales representatives to assist in the expansion of the
sales network coverage.

To continue enhancing brand recognition of own
brands through effective marketing strategy

The Group has developed “Hin Sang ($74)” brand into a well-
recognised brand in Hong Kong through an effective and
targeted advertising, marketing strategies and continuous
emphasis on product safety and quality. To further enhance the
popularity of the products in Hong Kong and brand awareness
and image in the PRC, the Group will continue its effective
and targeted marketing efforts. The Group also plans to make
use of innovative multimedia promotional channels such as
social media and mobile phone applications. In addition, the
Group intends to enhance the online shop which will provide a
convenient ordering system for our customers.

To further expand products portfolio by
developing new products with suitable
pharmaceutical companies.

In order to enlarge product portfolio and promote synergies
among various product segments, the Group will explore
opportunities to collaborate with suitable Chinese medicine
institutions or pharmaceutical companies to develop new health
supplements and analyse the ingredients and composition of its
products.

b)

c)

d)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$215.0 million for the
Period as compared to HK$253.2 million for the same period in 2014,
representing a decrease of 15.1%. Such decrease was mainly due to
sluggish market conditions across the retail sector in Hong Kong in
respect of the Group’s products.

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by 16.7% from approximately
HK$110.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately
HK$92.3 million for the Period. Such decrease was primarily due
to significant drop in purchase costs incurred under the Brand
Development and Management Segment and the Trading of Goods
Segment by 17.5% and 34.2% respectively as compared to that of
previous period.

In relation to sales under the Product Development Segment, cost
of sales decreased from approximately HK$61.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$55.2 million for the
Period. The change in cost of sales for all business segments were in
line with the corresponding fluctuation in revenue for the Period.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 13.8% from approximately
HK$142.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately
HK$122.7 million for the Period. However, the gross profit margin for
the Period increased from 56.2% to 57.1% which was mainly due to
the increase in the proportion of revenue from Product Development
Segment which has a relatively higher margin.

Other income

The Group’s other income increased from approximately HK$1.9
million for year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$3.6
million for the Period, which was mainly due to the increase in interest
income of approximately HK$0.9 million and the reversal of over-
accrued expenses of approximately HK$0.8 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB ki B o0 A

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses for the Period was loss of approximately
HK$0.3 million while it was gains of approximately HK$2.0 million
for the year ended 31 March 2014. The significant change was
attributable to (i) no fair value gain on held for trading investments
for the Period while it was fair value gain of approximately HK$1.6
million for the year ended 31 March 2014 and (ii) exchange loss
of approximately HK$0.3 million incurred during the Period while
exchange gains was approximately HK$0.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2014.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses increased by 30.7% from
approximately HK$34.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2014
to approximately HK$45.1 million for the Period. Such increase was
mainly attributable to the increased advertising expenses relating to
the online and television ads and other promotional activities in China
and Macau.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by 14.6% from approximately
HK$47.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately
HK$54.9 million for the Period which was mainly attributable to
(i) the increase of share-based payment expenses from nil for the
year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$2.4 million for the
Period relating to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme; (ii) the increase
of depreciation and amortisation expenses from approximately
HK$2.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately
HK$3.3 million relating to the depreciation of commercial properties
in Shenzhen, the PRC; (iii) the increase of donation expenses from
approximately HK$0.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to
approximately HK$2.1 million for the Period; and (iv) the increase in
legal and professional fees from approximately HK$2.5 million for the
year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$3.1 million for the
Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Listing expenses

The listing expenses increased from approximately HK$1.4 million for
the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$10.4 million for
the Period, which represented the one-off expenses regarding the
professional fees and printing costs of the prospectus in connection
with the Listing.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by 100% from approximately
HK$1.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to nil for the
Period. The decrease was due to no bank borrowings incurred
during the Period. After the disposal of Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical
(Hong Kong) Company Limited on 3 July 2013, the bank borrowing
of approximately HK$70.1 million associated with Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Company Limited was transferred out of
the Group.

Taxation

The Group’s tax charge decreased by 61.7% from approximately
HK$11.5 million for year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately
HK$4.4 million for the Period, while the effective tax rates were 18.8%
and 28.4% respectively. The decrease in tax charge was in line with
the decrease in profit before tax from approximately HK$61.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$15.5 million
for the Period.

Profit for the Period

As a result of the foregoing, the net profit decreased by 77.7% from
approximately HK$49.7 million for year ended 31 March 2014 to
approximately HK$11.1 million for the Period, while net profit margin
decreased from 19.6% to 5.1% for the Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Inventories

The Group’s inventories increased by 45.4% from approximately
HK$13.0 million as at 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$18.9
million as at 31 March 2015, which was primarily due to the increase
in finished products for distribution by 37.9% from approximately
HK$12.4 million as at 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$17.1
million as at 31 March 2015. Such increase was mainly due to the
increase in inventories of health care products under the Product
Development Segment. The inventory turnover days increased from
49.8 days for the year ended 31 March 2014 to 63.1 days for the
Period.

Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables decreased by 33.6% from
approximately HK$32.4 million as at 31 March 2014 to approximately
HK$21.5 million as at 31 March 2015, which was primarily
attributable to the decrease in trade receivables from distributors
arising from the purchase of health care products under the Product
Development Segment. The trade receivables turnover days for the
Period were 45.7 days while it were 42.1 days for the year ended 31
March 2014.

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents increased by 306.1% from
approximately HK$65.1 million as at 31 March 2014 to approximately
HK$264.4 million as at 31 March 2015 of which approximately
HK$190.4 million is proceeds from the Listing. As at 31 March 2015,
the Group had no outstanding bank borrowings and the amount of
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$26.8 million. The
gearing ratio (total debts divided by total equity) as at 31 March 2015
was nil (31 March 2014: nil). The current ratio (total current assets
divided by total current liabilities) as at 31 March 2015 was 11.4 (31
March 2014: 1.8).

rE

AEEFEMR2014F3A31BM413.08
BB T MN45.4% = 201563 A31 B A
18.9BEATT  TEMNFHIHKME 2014
FIATHBN124F 88 T IN37.9%
Z2015F3AHMMITABEALTT ° %
ENFrEAREMREDTNREBERTE
e FEEAEBREHEZE2014F 3 H 31
HIFFE#49.8 RIEMEAREAREAI63.1 K °

B 5 Bl EE

AEBE B S EWRFIBER2014F3 A31 H
M #3245 8B TR 2 33.6% E20154 3
AB1EMH21BEE L TEHRKE
DHABEERAESITNRBRERNE S
FEWCRIER D FR S - AHIE < B 5 R EIR
BE R A45.7K  MEZE2014%F 3 A 31
HIEFER421K -

RBEERELER

AEEZHES AR EEMH22014F3
HA31H8 2 #6518 &% T N306.1% =
2015F 3 A31 Az #264. 4B BB L (HAF
#1190.4 B BB LA ETATSFIE - K 2015
F3A31H  AEEWEREERITEE -
BARGABITHELNA268EEBTL K
20154 3A31H BEEABBLR(EXEE
BrUAEZS4EEE) AT (20143 A31H : T) -
R2015F3A31 B MBLLE(RBEER
BERARESEERLTE) B11.4(2014F3 A
31H :1.8)°

26 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2015



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial management and policy

The Group continues to adopt prudent financing and treasury
policies. All the Group’s financing and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled. Implementation of the Group’s related
policies is made under collective but extensive considerations on
liquidity risk, financing cost and exchange rate risk.

The executive Directors, with the assistance of the group financial
controller, are responsible for identifying, reviewing, evaluating and
analyzing the investment opportunities of the Group. The executive
Directors also regularly monitor the cash position and funding
requirement of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2015, the Directors were not aware of any significant
events that would have resulted in material contingent liabilities.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (82 £1), aged 50, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. He is the founder of the Group and
has been the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
since 1996. He is responsible for the overall strategic planning,
formulation of the corporate policies and the day-to-day management
of the Group. Mr. Pang has about 19 years of experience in the
industry of distribution, marketing and sale of health care products,
personal care products and household products, the experience of
which was gained from the operation of the Group. Mr. Pang was
appointed as the director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of
Commerce in 2005, the honourable president of The Cosmetic &
Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Ltd (Bt R E e AR
A7) in 2008, the honourable chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese
Medicine Industry Association (&8 B 12 B R A 7)) in 2009, the
vice president of HK & Kin Kit Yeung Clansmen General Association
Limited (B&NBEBSRALEHERAT]) in 2009 and became
the executive vice president in 2013, the director of YL Chiu Chow
Clansmen’s Association Ltd. (JTEREEIMRIZFEER A R)) in 2009
and became the vice president since 2011, the life honorary chairman
of Hong Kong Listed Chinese Medicine Practitioners Association in
2010, the director of Pok Oi Hospital in Hong Kong from 2009 to
2011 and became the vice president since 2012, the honourable
president of Junior Police Call (Yuen Long District) in 2010, the co-
chairman of New Territories Walk for Millions Organizing Committee
of The Community Chest of Hong Kong (&2 Az %) and the
member of Yuen Long Town Area Committee under the Home Affairs
Department in 2014 (R EH%E — TANEZEZEEE®ZE). Heis also
the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Education Fund Association
focusing on the development of education work in PRC since 2010.
Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the husband of Ms. Kwan Lai Man.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Kwan Lai Man (B BES2), aged 44, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. Ms. Kwan is a founder of the Group
and has been the Managing Director of the Group since 1996. She
is responsible for supervising the Group’s business operations. She
has about 19 years of experience in the industry of distribution,
marketing and sale of health care products, personal care products
and household products, the experience of which was gained from
the operation of the Group. She is also devoted in the development
of education work in PRC and is the life honorary chairman of Xuan
Yuan Education Fund Association since 2010. Ms. Kwan Lai Man is
the wife of Mr. Pang Siu Hin.

Mr. Mok Tsan San (REH), aged 44, was appointed in May 2015
as an executive Director. Mr. Mok is the managing director of Capital
Union Investments Limited, a direct investment firm with a portfolio in
the PRC and overseas. Mr. Mok is currently an executive director of
Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272) and
Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (stock code: 8089) and is also
an non-executive director of Newtree Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1323) and Casablanca Group Limited (stock code: 2223),
the shares of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Mok has over 12 years of solid experiences in fund raising and
investment syndication in a number of ventures. He has helped,
funded, and/or personally invested in and advised in a number of
other Silicon Valley companies, including but not limited to Facebook
Inc. and Proteus Digital Health. Mr. Mok began his career in Babtie
Asia Limited (now named as Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.), an
international civil engineering consulting firm as an engineer. He holds
a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from Ohio State
University in United States.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (8¥), aged 54, was appointed in November
2010 as a non-executive Director. Ms. Wong has more than 22
years of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing. She
received a bachelor degree in arts from the University of Hong Kong
in November 1983 and a diploma in Accounting and Finance from
the London School of Economics and Political Science, University
of London in the United Kingdom in July 1985. Ms. Wong was
registered as a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in June 1991 and an associate of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April 1990.
She has worked for more than seven years in major international
accounting firms and major local accounting firms before she set
up her own accounting firm, W. L. Wong & Co., in Hong Kong in
1994. Since then, she has been practising as a Certified Public
Accountant. Ms. Wong is an executive director and chief executive
officer of JC Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8326). Ms. Wong
is also an independent non-executive director of five Hong Kong
listed companies, namely, Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company
Limited (stock code: 3608), China Ruifeng Renewable Energy
Holdings Limited (stock code: 527), Overseas Chinese Town (Asia)
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3366), AVIC International Holdings
Limited (formerly known as CATIC Shenzhen Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 161) and Glory Flame Holdings Limited (stock code:
8059). Save and except Glory Flame Holdings Limited and JC Group
Holdings Limited, Ms. Wong also acts as the chairperson of the audit
committee of each of these listed companies.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (ZEi#&Jk), aged 57, was appointed in September
2014 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee has over 27
years of experience in commercial accounting and corporate finance.
Mr. Lee became a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in April 2001 and an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February 1987.
He obtained a diploma in business administration from Hong Kong
Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University)
in July 1983. He has worked in the Stock Exchange for around
15 years from 1986 to 1993 and from 1997 to 2005, his duties
included regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed companies
in relation to their compliance with the Listing Rules and processing
new listing applications. His last position with the Stock Exchange
was an assistant vice president of the Listing Division. Mr. Lee was
also a senior consultant of an investment bank for 5 years from 2007
to 2012 and he has been an independent non-executive director of
Huabao International Holdings Limited (stock code: 336) the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange since 1 May 2006.

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (88 8), aged 46, was appointed in
November 2010 as an Independent Non-executive Director. Dr. Tang
has over 15 years of experience in the financial and securities sector.
He received a bachelor degree in business, major in finance from
Edith Cowan University, Australia in February 1993 and holds a PhD.
Degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in July 2007.
He became a senior associate of the Australian Institute of Banking
and Finance in December 1995. He is the executive director and vice
chairman of Jun Yang Solar Power Investments Limited (stock code
397) the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is
also the CEO and director of Jun Yang Securities Company Limited
which is the subsidiaries of Jun Yang Solar Power Investments
Limited since April 2015. He is also the chairman of The Hong Kong
Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional Commentators Limited
and the executive committee member of the Hong Kong Securities
Professionals Association. He has been a part-time lecturer of the
Master of Social Science in Global Political Economy Programme of
The Chinese University of Hong Kong since September 2010.
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Mr. Tsui Nam Hung (#&&#), aged 62, was appointed in November
2010 as an Independent Non-executive Director. Mr. Tsui has over
22 years of experience in finance control and business logistics. He
received a certificate in management jointly held by the Hong Kong
Management Association and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in September 1990. He has worked for more than 20 years in a
global distributor of branded personal and family care product from
May 1987 and his last position in that company was finance director
and supply chain leader before his retirement in May 2010. He gained
his finance and business logistics related experience through working
in the global distributor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Choy Suk Man (R 3Z), aged 49, is the financial controller
and company secretary of the Company. He joined the Group in July
2014 and is responsible for the Group’s financial management. He
obtained his bachelor’s degree of Arts in Accounting (Hong Kong)
from Napier University in the United Kingdom in 1999. Mr. Choy is
currently a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of International Accountants.
Mr. Choy possesses a solid background of over 25 years of
experience in accounting. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Choy was
the financial controller of KingsRomans (& R18& @B R A 7)) from
October 2011 to November 2013 and the group financial controller of
Jimei International Hotel Management Company Limited (previously
known as Jimei Hotels International Management Company Limited)
from January 2005 to September 2011 advising on their listings on
the Stock Exchange. Prior to that, he was the group deputy financial
controller of Mission Hills Golf Club Limited from July 1997 to June
2003. Mr. Choy also worked in Universal Leather Tourister Limited as
an accountant from November 1989 to April 1997.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choy Suk Man (&H3Z), aged 49, is the financial controller and
the company secretary of the Company. His details of the qualification
and experience are set out in paragraph headed “Company
Secretary” above in this section.

Mr. Cheuk Wah Kit (&), aged 32, is the key account manager
of the Company. He joined the Group in July 2005 since graduation
and is responsible for managing the daily operation of the sales
department. In particular, he is responsible for managing skin care
products and general food products and handling daily operational
matters with chain retailers. He graduated from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in
science in 2005. Since then, he has been working at the Group’s
sales department and made valuable contribution to the Group.
Mr. Cheuk is familiar with the Group’s internal operation and external
sales strategies. He has accumulated 10 years of relevant experience.

Mr. Mak Wing Keung (ZFxk i), aged 48, is the information
technology manager of the Company. He joined the Group in May
2004 and is responsible for its network administration and provides
information technology support. He received a certificate of an
advanced diploma in computer studies and in electronic commerce in
the London International College for Further and Higher Education in
September and June 2001 respectively. Prior to joining the Group, he
has worked as a technical support supervisor providing information
technology support, network administration, hardware and software
development in a firm from 2002 to 2004 and has worked as a
supervisor supervising a team of technicians and servicing personnel
from 1993 to 2002 and has accumulated 19 years of relevant
experience.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management of the Company commit to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate good
corporate governance practice for improvement of accountability
and transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal
control system from time to time so as to ensure to meet with the
expectations of the shareholders of the Company.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Except for the deviation from CG Code provision A.2.1, the
Company’s corporate governance practices have complied with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices. CG Code provision A.2.1
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Pang Siu Hin is the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. In view that Mr. Pang Siu Hin is one of the co-founders of
the Group and has been operating and managing the Group since
1996, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group
to have Mr. Pang taking up both roles for effective management and
business development. Therefore the Directors consider that the
deviation from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such
circumstance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all Directors and all Directors confirm that they have complied
with the standards required by the Model Code during the Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging
its corporate accountability, every Director is required to pursue
excellence in the interests of the Shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary
duties by applying the required level of skills, care and diligence to a
standard in accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for formulating group policies and business
directions, and monitoring internal controls and performances.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 March 2015, the Board comprises six members including
two executive Directors, one non-executive Director, and three
independent non-executive Directors.

The current Board members are:

Name Present position
Chairman of the Board,
chief executive officer and
executive Director
Managing Director and
executive Director
Executive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Pang Siu Hin

Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Mr. Mok Tsan San

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung

The biographies details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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For the period between 16 October 2014 (the date of listing of the
Company’s Shares in the Stock Exchange) and 31 March 2015, the
Board at all times met the requirement of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing specific
aspects of the Company’s affair under its defined scope of duties
and term of reference. The terms of reference of each of the Board
Committees are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. Details of difference committees are discussed
below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things, to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group.

As at 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee consists of three
members who are the independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny and Mr. Tsui Nam Hung.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Lee Luk Shiu.

During the Period, the Audit Committee had convened one meeting
and performed the following work:

1. to review the 2014/15 interim report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

2. to review the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements; and

3. to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are, among
other things, to review and to determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors
and senior management.

As at 31 March 2015, the remuneration committee consists of four
members, namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Dr. Tang
Sing Hing, Kenny and Mr. Tsui Nam Hung. The chairman of the
remuneration committee is Mr. Tsui Nam Hung. During the Period, no
meeting of Remuneration Committee was convened.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. The primary function of the nomination committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or reappointment
of Directors and the management of the Board succession.

As at 31 March 2015, the Nomination Committee consists of four
members, namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Dr. Tang Sing
Hing, Kenny and Mr. Tsui Nam Hung. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny. During the Period, no
meeting of the Nomination Committee was convened.
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Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee

Meetings

During the Period, details of each Director’s attendance in the

HEEEEeRRESEREEER

R SEFHETIIEH

FHIBE W

following meetings are set out below. e
Numbers of meetings attended/
entitled to attend
EHEER AHEHE
-1 T2

Regular full Audit Committee

Directors Board meetings meetings
EHZE L 1

Ex EFeel ZRESR
Executive Directors WMiTES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin ZAPTEAE 3/3
Ms. Kwan Lai Man AERER T 3/3
Non-executive Director FERITESE
Ms. Wong Wai Ling mERL T 3/3
Independent non-executive Directors BILIFFITESE
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu L 3/3 1/1
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny B i - 3/3 1/1
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung e A 3/3 11
During the Period, no meeting of Nomination Committee and HiA - REZEEhFWEESUERTE
Remuneration Committee were convened. =4
BOARD MEETINGS EEEesR

The Company generally convenes four regular full Board meetings
per year or more meetings when necessary. During the Period, three
regular full Board meetings were convened:

1. reviewed and approved the 2014/15 interim report of the
Company and its related results announcements and documents;

2.  reviewed and approved the operational and financial reports of

the Group;

3. reviewed and approved of the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee; and

4. reviewed and approved all documents required for listing
including change of memorandum and articles of association
of the Company, the Prospectus, audits reports, profit and
cashflow forecast, listing application documents, etc.

ARRBEGFRTARE

HerREFEee

AR ABERHMEHRY - NS BT
SREHERERGRE -

1.

=0 R ERA T Z 2014/15 FHh EiER
EREBAEENS XX

BHLIEASE 2 EB R BRE

EHMMERZEZES  FMZEER
REZBEZHERE: &

ER MALE AR P - B
EEARR CABERAMNRERER
AR BERR - BREWME 8RR
ERIER - EMEHBEXASE -
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have kept abreast of their responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continuously updated with regulatory and
governance developments.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional development
courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has devised a training record to assist the
Directors to record the training they have undertaken.

During the Period, some Directors had attended the following training
seminars conducted by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors:

Role of Company Director in Board Practices;

Role of Company Director in Regulatory Framework;
Market Misconduct;

Risk of Risks — Reputation Risk; and
Decision-making Processes & Skills.

o~ w0~

All the Directors have confirmed they had participated in continuous
professional developments to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills as directors during the Period.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 to reflect a true and fair
view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial conditions and
results and cash flows during the Period.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2015, the generally accepted accounting principles in Hong
Kong, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent use of
appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates. The financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015 were prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report in this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly
in respect of controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk
management, to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets.

Before listing, the Group has engaged external internal control
reviewer to conduct internal control reviews in 2010, 2013 and 2014.
The scope of the reviews covered the following areas: (i) overall
management control which includes code of conduct, conflict of
interests, risk assessment, legal and regulatory compliance, and
report of control deficiency, etc., (i) group financial reporting and
disclosure control, (jii) budgeting, (iv) treasury functions, (v) information
system management, (vi) human resources and payroll cycle, (vii)
sales, receivables and collection cycle, (viii) purchases, payables,
expenses and payments, and (ix) inventory cycle.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance. The system aims to eliminate, or otherwise
manage, risks of failure in achieving the Company’s objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group, including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit
Committee oversees the internal control system of the Group and
communicates any material issues to the Board.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

In order to protect the Group’s interests, the Deed of Non-
Competition dated 25 September 2014 executed by the Controlling
Shareholders in favour of the Company. Pursuant to the terms of the
Deed of Non-Competition, Mr. Pang, Mrs. Pang and the Controlling
Shareholders have jointly and severally undertaken, among others,
in favour of the Group that Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical would not
engage in any business or manufacture any products which are in
competition with those of the Group. The Company’s independence
non-executive Directors review, at least on annual basis, the
compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition by the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective close associates on their existing
or future competing business.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 2B &

The remuneration paid or payable to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng #Z 20153 431 B IEFE R EFZ R K&
Limited in respect of the audit services and non-audit services for the ~ FEBEZRB I ENEF SN EHBTE

year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows: RARI 2SI -
Nature of services Fee paid/payables
RIEME Bft EtEA
HK$’000
BT
Audit services BIZRT 650
Non-audit services FEEZARTE
— Initial public offering of the Company — AREERRFAEE 1,048
— Review services — &% 150
Total a5t 1,848
COMPANY SECRETARY NRIMWE

Mr. Choy Suk Man, the company secretary of the Company, has AR &2 A B WEE RS £ B R 7 H
confirmed that he has attended not less than 15 hours of relevant ~ RBEZ2 TR 15/ Z HEAZ ST -
professional training during the Period.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS BRRRKREEZEE
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with AR REEERRAREBLINRERES
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and MR RIEEEH RSB EBFREREKE 2
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance T#iM=s2MEE - REEITRBA AR K&
and strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of FEBELEERLERRLZEEIELEE
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which REREZEZ M ©

enables shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment

decisions.
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The members of the Board and Board committees and the external
auditor will be present to answer shareholders’ questions in the
annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be distributed
to all shareholders before the annual general meeting and any
extraordinary general meetings in accordance with the timeline
requirement as laid down in the Listing Rules and the articles of
association of the Company. All the resolutions proposed to be
approved at the general meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting
results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after the relevant general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquires.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting can be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth
(10%) of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary of the company
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions in the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands for
shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns
together with their names and contact information to the
Board by addressing them to the head office in Hong Kong
at Flat B, 12/F., Hi-Tech Centre, 11 Wang Yip Street West,
Yuen Long, New Territories, Hong Kong by post or email to
contact@hinsanggroup.com for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The Board will reply the enquiries and concerns as
soon as possible.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association of the Company on 25 September 2014 in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing memorandum and
articles of association of the Company with effect from 16 October
2014. A copy of the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association is also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange website.

2)

3)
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The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in developing, marketing, selling
and distributing a wide variety of personal care products (mainly
consisting of bath and shower gels, shampoos and conditioners,
and skin care products), health care products (mainly consisting
of health supplements including but not limited to child specific
milk supplements, dietary supplements, appetising teas, nutritive
drinks, cough and cold remedies, herbal teas and medicated oils)
and household products (mainly consisting of laundry detergents
and antiseptic germicides) under various brands. Details of principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements. There has been no significant
change in the principal business of the Group during the Period.

The segment information of the operations of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2015 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING AND PLACING

The shares of the Company became listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 16 October 2014. The offer price was
HK$1.18 per share and 200,000,000 Shares were allotted. The
net proceeds from the offer was approximately HK$217.3 million
after deducting underwriting fees and related expenses, which are
intended to be applied in the manner consistent with that set out
in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 September 2014. As at
31 March 2015, the net proceeds from the Listing were utilized as
follows:
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Use of proceeds Net proceeds Proceeds used Balance
FRERERE FERERE CHRBRE e
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT
Exploring business collaboration opportunities = SKERHT R IEHEA A

with new brand proprietors LEBAIEHRE 104.4 — 104.4
Expanding the sales and distribution network ~ #ASE & I 2 $H484% 54.3 0.9 53.4

Enhancing the marketing and RAEFE TSR
promotion activities in the PRC REEED 326 13.0 19.6
Expanding the product portfolio BRERAS 13.0 — 13.0
General working capital —MREEES 13.0 13.0 —
217.3 26.9 190.4

As at 31 March 2015, the unused net proceeds were placed with
banks in Hong Kong as short-term deposits.

OPERATING RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 66 of this annual report.

The details of the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 69 and note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
per Share for the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “2015 Final
Dividend”) with a sum of approximately HK$8,000,000, which is
subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2015 annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 10 September 2015
(the “AGM”). The 2015 Final Dividend will be distributed on or about
Tuesday, 13 October 2015 to shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 21 September 2015.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
8 September 2015 to 10 September 2015, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
7 September 2015.

Subject to the approval of the proposed 2015 Final Dividend from
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 17
September 2015 to 21 September 2015, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered for ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed 2015 Final Dividend. In
order to qualify for the proposed 2015 Final Dividend, all transfer of
Shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share register in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on 16 September 2015.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the audited consolidated results and the assets, equity
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 156 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements in the investment property of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 69 and note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 March, 2015 were approximately HK$228.2 million.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, subject to
the provisions of memorandum of association of the Company
or the articles of association (the “Articles of Association”),
the Company’s share premium account may be applied to pay
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately
following the date of distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles of
Association of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any listed shares of the Company after the Listing.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group’s total charitable donations for the Period amounted to
approximately HK$2.1 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The followings are the percentage of purchases and sales attributable
to the major customers and suppliers of the Group for the Period:

Purchases

—the largest supplier 22.0%
—the five largest suppliers 55.2%
Sales

—the largest customer 19.6%
—the five largest customers 43.1%

Save and except for the Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical which was
the second largest supplier for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
Brighten Hong Limited ($4 # 17 B BR 2 d)), a company is owned by
Mr. Pang’s brother-in-law, which was the fifth largest customer for the
year ended 31 March 2015. All the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers during the Period were all independent third parties.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, or any of the associates or
any shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, hold over
5% of the issued share capital of the Company, had any beneficial
interest in the major customers or suppliers of the Group noted
above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Period were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Chairman)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (appointed on 25 September 2014)
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Mr. Tsui Nam Hung

Pursuant to Article 108(a) and (b) of the Articles of Association, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire
by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to obtain the number
required) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for re-election. In addition, code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code
also stipulates that each Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Subsequently, Mr. Mok Tsan San was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 May 2015.

Mr. Pang Siu Hin, Ms. Kwan Lai Man and Mr. Mok Tsan San will be
retired at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will be available
for re-election as Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the three Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.
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BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 28 to 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company. Each service contract is for an initial term of three
years and shall continue thereafter unless and until it is terminated by
the Company or the Director giving to the other not less than three
months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company
under which each of them is appointed for a period of three years.

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have any service
agreement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (other
than contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or which were required to be disclosed, under the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

EENEREEEBRREHE

AEBEENSREREREFBHNAF
WFE28EB3H °

EERBESY

HWTEFCDREEARRRILRBEL - &
REEHNNPFRA=FNNERBEE
% BRIERBEEANBARRREERN S —
HELTIR=ZEAELEEMBNMARLR
i -

FRTESRBUIFRTESTTECEAR
ARG EH - B - RESBERRE
RE=%F -

BEEEEARTIETMAMB AR LK
BE LRGSO (R —FAEmNEE
A A NERE ORERERIN) MR LENE
KIERSM) ©

EERETETBAERKS - 8
RO REEENERRAR

MR2015F3A31H ARRAEEREETT
BABRARTSEAREZE(ERRFS
REAEIGHIEXVER) MAkH - BERME
EEF - BECDREFSFRAEEHIZEXV S
F7TR8DIBAME RN B KB FTRIER R
KE (BIEREESKBAEGKOE B
EESREBEENERRAR)  KIREE
% N BB GBI 352 (R AR AR R B BT
P& AR SRR _ETH R B
BTFE EMBITAESTETELFRINE
EFAIETHBENRR AR NT

50 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2015



(@ Long position in Shares

(b)
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@ RROPHEFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Shares held shareholding
03 SEEY:
EEga 215 FrisBEin & B Bt
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Interest of a controlled corporation 600,000,000 75%
and family interest (Note)
TR AE RiEHEE S kR g (M)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Interest of a controlled corporation 600,000,000 75%
and family interest (Note)
HREELL RiEH AR S KR g (M)
Note: Genwealth is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu Hin and M STE A ITEERERRE LT

10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Accordingly, Mr. Pang Siu Hin is deemed
to be interested in the 600,000,000 Shares held by Genwealth under

EmEA 0% K10% At - RIEE
FRBEED  ErRERRAERTE

the SFO. Ms. Kwan Lai Man, being the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin,
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares that Mr. Pang Siu Hin is
interested in.

5  #9600,000,000 % B% 17 & 1 B 1E
5 o ﬁ%%@*ﬁt(ﬂ%z%ﬁ‘ﬁimm
B) MR ARE DT e A R
FTERMD AR ©

Long position in the underlying shares of the

b) REQXTEEBEROAFZHR

Company
Number of
Number of underlying
Name of Director Capacity options held shares
EENR 51 FrisiEE R A HERIZEAE
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 13,600,000 13,600,000
ZPTEE E=EAA
Interest of spouse (Note) 8,000,000 8,000,000
Aot (PEE)
21,600,000 21,600,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 8,000,000 8,000,000
HRELL EnlEEA
Interest of spouse (Note) 13,600,000 13,600,000
Aot (PHaE)
21,600,000 21,600,000
Note: Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are married couple. Each of Mz : ZOTEERBEEZRA L Z0REB - &
Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man is therefore deemed to be WEPITEERBBEL T WA

interested in the underlying Shares held by each other.

Y77 s B RER (D B s o
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(¢) Long position in Genwealth, an associated
corporation of the Company

(©) RARBEBEETEPNTR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares held shareholding
ExEgE 510 FrisEinE B B OEET =0 0 A
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 9,000 90%
TR AE EnEAA
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 1,000 10%

HREELL ERBEAA

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions therein that they shall
be deemed to have pursuant to such provisions of the SFO), or
any interests or short positions which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or any interests or short positions which have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2015, so far as it is known to the Directors, the
following persons, not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company, will have an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or, who is interested, directly or indirectly, in 10% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group:

H R

TERENAL TR LAY EE
IR - HBRG REEE R

BEIXR

K201 3A31H  MEEMA - LT A
T (WHEESIARFEBITHRAL) BRAR
NARN RABERNDTFHBEREZSFRAE
BIEXVEE 2 3D H G BRI AT
WEOESIAR  KEEXEEEFHE
BN RTEBER TEREBEMRKE AR
RERAE EIREMNEAERRAEE 10% 3%
P £

Long position in Shares RBRGHRNEE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity Shares interests
2| Sin 37 ] | RaEhastt
Genwealth Beneficial owner 600,000,000 75%
= E=BEAA
Save as disclosed above, so far as it is known to the Directors, there  BR EXFTHEESIN - IBESHTA - BIEEM

was no other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2015 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective associates nor was the Company
and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective associates to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted two share option schemes on 25 September
2014, namely the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme under the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company.

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize
the contribution of certain employees, executives or officers of
the Group made or will make to the growth of the Group and/
or the listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period from
25 September 2014 to 15 October 2014, after which no further
options will be granted. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one Share. The total number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
24,640,000 Shares, representing 3.1% of total number of
Shares in issue as at 30 September 2014. The offer of a grant
of share options shall be accepted when the offer letter has
been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has been
paid by the grantee.

The exercise price per option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$0.826, being 30% discount of the offering price
per Share in the initial public offer on 16 October 2014.
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During the Period, total 24,640,000 options under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme was granted and no options
was exercised. Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
has been disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated
30 September 2014,

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that Eligible Participants (as defined below) have made or may
make to the Group so as to motivate the Eligible Participants
to optimize their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group, and attract, retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial to the Group.
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on 16 October 2014, after
which no further options will be issued. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one Share. The total number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000 Shares (10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of listing of the Shares),
unless approved by the shareholders in general meeting (the
maximum number of Shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from time
to time). No option may be granted to any Eligible Participant
which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
already granted or to be granted to such Eligible Participant
under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant exceeding 1% in aggregate
of the Shares in issue as at the date of such grant. The offer of
a grant of share options shall be accepted when the offer letter
has been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has
been paid by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the Directors and ends on
a date which is not later than ten years from the date of the
acceptance of the offer of share options.

)
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Eligible Participants include: (i) any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(the “Affiliate”); or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary
of which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company beneficially owned
by any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate.

The exercise price of options shares shall not be less than the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the relevant option, which must be a business day; (ii) an
amount equivalent to the average closing price of the Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant option; and (i) the nominal value of the Share on
the date of grant.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. Details of the Share Option Scheme has been
disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 September
2014,
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

H R

TREBENREZE2015F3A31BILE
EREE X ARBERBRETEIRE

during the year ended 31 March 2015: ZANA T ERAEEE
Exercise As at
Category or name of price per As at Grant during 31 March
participant Date of grant share Exercise period 1 April 2014 the period 2015
BREHG
SHENFHBMKSE #H AR Z&Eﬁﬂ) fHER  #2014%F4F18 Bl #2015538 318
87T
(HKS)
Director
EF
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2015 - 24/9/2024 - 2,720,000 2,720,000
ZOEE
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 - 2,720,000 2,720,000
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 - 2,720,000 2,720,000
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 - 2,720,000 2,720,000
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 - 2,720,000 2,720,000
- 13,600,000 13,600,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2015 - 24/9/2024 - 1,600,000 1,600,000
WEZLL
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 — 1,600,000 1,600,000
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 — 1,600,000 1,600,000
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 — 1,600,000 1,600,000
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 — 1,600,000 1,600,000
— 8,000,000 8,000,000
Employees
&R
Employees at aggregate 25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2015 - 24/9/2024 — 768,000 768,000
EE(&H)
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 — 768,000 768,000
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 — 928,000 928,000
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 — 288,000 288,000
25/9/2014 0.826 16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 — 288,000 288,000
— 3,040,000 3,040,000
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DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director or Controlling Shareholders had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended
31 March 2015 or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2015, the Directors were not aware of any business
or interest of the Directors and their respective associates that had
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interests which any such person had or might have
with the Group.

REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company has established
the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration policies.
Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Company’s Directors are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules since the Listing Date to 31 March 2015.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Controlling Shareholders, including the company wholly owned
by each of them respectively, have confirmed to the Company of
their compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to
the Company under a deed of non-competition dated 25 September
2014. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the deed of non-competition have been complied with by the
Controlling Shareholders and duly enforced since the Listing Date
and up to the date of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 June 2015, Hin Sang Group Holding Limited (“Hin Sang
Holding”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition”) with Mr. Pang and
Mrs. Pang for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Tai
Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (the “Sale Shares”). The transaction was
completed on 1 June 2015 and the consideration for the acquisition
of the Sale Shares paid by Hin Sang Holding is HK$9,800,000.

With the Acquisition, Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical becomes a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and thus the transactions
contemplated under the supply agreement, the service agreement
and the packing agreement between Tai Wong Tong Pharmaceutical
and Hin Sang Hong (HK) are ceased to be continuing connected
transactions of the Company. For details of the Acquisition, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 1 June 2015.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire as auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and a resolution for its re-appointment will be proposed at the said
meeting.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are the details of the continuing connected transactions
of the Company as required to be reported under the Listing Rules
(including the significant related party transactions as set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements during the Period).

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

1.  Service Agreement with Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical
Date of Agreement . 25 September 2014

Parties : Hin Sang Hong (HK) and Tai Wo
Tong Pharmaceutical

Term . Commenced from 16 October 2014
until 31 March 2016.

Objective . Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical was
engaged to including but not limited
to conduct product research and
development, assist the Group to
obtain relevant PCM registration
and approvals for the new PCM
and conduct sample checking of
the Group’s new PCM to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations in Hong Kong.

Annual cap for the : HK$1,700,000
year ended
31 March 2015

Actual consideration :  HK$66,000
for the year ended
31 March 2015
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Packing Agreement with Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical

Date of Agreement

Parties

Term

Objective

Annual cap for the
year ended
31 March 2015

Actual consideration
for the year ended
31 March 2015

25 September 2014

Hin Sang Hong (HK) and Tai Wo
Tong Pharmaceutical

Commenced from 16 October 2014
until 31 March 2016.

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical was
engaged to pack certain PCM of the
Group at the fees to be determined
with reference to the market price
for packing similar type of product
and of similar quantity.

HK$10,300,000

HK$10,292,933

Sale of products under the Group brands to Brighten Hong

Limited
Date of Agreement

Parties

Term

Objective

25 September 2014

Hin Sang Hong (HK) and Brighten
Hong Limited

Commenced from 16 October 2014
until 31 March 2016.

Brighten Hong Limited sources
the Group products for sales and
distribution to anywhere in the
world save for Hong Kong, Macau,
Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan.

H R
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R

Annual cap for the HK$18,000,000
year ended

31 March 2015

Actual consideration HK$7,734,604
for the year ended

31 March 2015

For details of the connected transactions, please refer to the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 September 2014.

All the above continuing connected transactions did not exceed
the relevant annual cap amounts. The Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company and confirmed that they
were:

i. entered into on normal commercial terms;

i in the ordinary and usual course of business and are fair and
reasonable to the Group; and

i.  the terms of the agreements are no less favourable to the Group
than terms offered by Independent Third Parties, and therefore
are in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has
appointed the auditor of the Company to carry out certain procedures
on the above continuing connected transactions in accordance
with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions.

By order of the Board
Pang Siu Hin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B st 8 FE B A R A S
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hin
Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 66 to 155, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

188 1A S i Ak o

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Ching Pang
Practising Certificate Number: PO5746

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
v 4 g B LAl 2 i B e %

For the year ended 31 March 2015 £ 201543 A 31 HIF F/E

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HIK$’'000
P BETT BT
Revenue WA 5 214,959 253,171
Cost of sales Fi=k= DN (92,296) (110,830)
Gross profit EH 122,663 142,341
Other income HALKA 6 3,571 1,941
Other gains and losses H b las K g8 7 (311) 1,958
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R IERAX (45,129) (34,529)
Administrative expenses THRHX (54,939) (47,923)
Listing expenses ERX (10,405) (1,374)
Finance costs BE KA 8 - (1,239)
Profit before tax FR A5 AT A 15,450 61,175
Income tax expense FTiS#if Sz 9 (4,399) (11,471)
Profit for the year F % F 10 11,051 49,704
Other comprehensive expense EtemEAx
Item that may be reclassified HEEEH 7HHE
subsequently to profit or loss: Ba s HE -
Exchange differences on translating BREINEEB 2
foreign operations [ H Z5E (799) (1,015)
Total comprehensive income for the year — FAZEUWALLEE 10,252 48,689
Profit for the year attributable to owners KAFIHAE AL
of the Company FR @A 11,051 49,704
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ZRRA A1 H AFE(L
attributable to owners of the Company FAZHEW AL 10,252 48,689
Earnings per share BR2F 12
— Basic (HK cents) — EAR B 1.60 8.28
— Diluted (HK cents) — B8 (Bl 1.60 N/A N iE

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a B M BHR DL

At 31 March 2015 782015 3 5 31 H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T BETT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment E S 14 16,831 16,521
Prepaid lease payments FEREERIA 15 18,891 19,531
Investment property REYHE 16 6,555 6,548
Deposits for acquisition of property, W~ R
plant and equipment NEE RS 6,333 —
48,610 42,600
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 18 18,890 12,999
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A ERGRIE 19 26,894 37,626
Tax refundable ARER R 3,327 =
Bank balances and cash SRITHESREIRS 20 264,393 65,059
313,504 115,684
Total assets HEHE 362,114 158,284
Current liabilities mBEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 &AM ERFRIE 21 27,432 27,482
Dividend payable FERTAR B - 30,000
Current tax liabilities BIEAFIE B E - 6,507
27,432 63,989
Net current assets mBEERE 286,072 51,695
Total assets less current liabilities SEHERTBHARE 334,682 94,295
Capital and reserves BX Rl
Share capital N 24 80,000 30,000
Reserves E 254,682 64,295
Total equity EaeE 334,682 94,295

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 155 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

30 June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pang Siu Hin
B
Director

EF

L

J/

E66E 155 B 2 47 A WIS AR E R 20154F
6 A0 HEESSHEMRETEE - WHT

JIESEREREE

Kwan Lai Man

Director

EF
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R BN

At 31 March 2015 782015 3 5 31 H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HIK$’'000
B RE BRETT BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENBARIMNEE 17 71,618 71,618
Current assets REEE
Prepayments SEANE S 313 —
Amount due from a subsidiary Rl —FEMTB ARIKIE 22 33,963 —
Dividend receivable FEUIZ B - 30,300
Bank balances SRITHERR 20 204,710 =
238,986 30,300
Total assets SEWE 310,604 101,918
Current liabilities mEAE
Accruals FEFtER 20 —
Amount due to a subsidiary R —FEMBARKIE 22 - 239
Dividend payable FERAR B - 30,000
20 30,239
Net current assets MENEEBE 238,966 61
Total assets less current liabilities EERERTBER 310,584 71,679
Capital and reserves BEX Rkl
Share capital N 24 80,000 30,000
Reserves i 26 230,584 41,679
Total equity R8s 310,584 71,679
|\
Pang Siu Hin Kwan Lai Man
BOE FAES
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B R A 52 B R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 22 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

Foreign Equity
currency Share attributable
Share Share Merger translation options Retained  to owners of
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits the Company
S FLATHRAA
[ kv &R AP ERGE WREGH REAT 312§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Note 24) (Note)
(fifzE24) (FtzE)
At 1 Aprl 2013 R201354 A 1R 30,000 41,618 (71,463 427 - 95,170 95,752
Profit for the year EREN - - - - - 49704 49704
Other comprehensive expense  FEEMAERX
for the year
Exchange differences on BENEEBC ERER
translating foreign operations - - - (1,015) - - (1,015)
Total comprehensive FE2EARN/ (%)%
income/(expense) for the year - - - (1,015) - 49,704 48,689
Dividends recognised as distrioution 2B & RERS
(Note 13) (Ft3z13) - - - - - (50,146) (50,146)
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3 A31H 30,000 41,618 (71,463 (688) - 94,728 94,295
4 N\
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - 11,051 11,051
Other comprehensive expense ~ EEEM2ERX
for the year
Exchange differences on RENEEBC ERER
translating foreign operations - - - (799) - - (799)
Total comprenensive FE2ERN/ (%) 4%
income/(expense) for the year - - - (799) - 11,051 10,252
Capitalisation issue BB 30,000 (30,000) - - - - -
Issue of new shares BT 20,000 216,000 - - - - 236,000
Expense incurred in connection  AETHIRGEL 2 FX
with issue of new shares - (8,267) - - - - (8,267)
Recognition of equity-settled REREE RS
share-based payments RERRMT - - - - 2,402 - 2,402
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3A31H 80,000 219,351 (71,463) (1,387) 2,402 105,779 334,682
|\ J

Note: The merger reserve represents the difference between the share capital
of the Company and the aggregate amount of share capital of other
companies now comprising the Group, after elimination of intra-group

investments.

MieE - A OHREIEA R RNRARRAEBREGETE
R AR AR RIHEEA R RHEK
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HABlERiER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 2 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

2015 b 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Cash flows from operating activities BETDRBHRLQKE
Profit before tax BRAS AT 15,450 61,175
Adjustments for: B TR IEFE
Finance costs ELEID %N - 1,239
Interest income B U A (2,171) (1,319
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - HE
plant and equipment K5 2 W (25) ©®)
Gain on fair value change of RIEEERE
held for trading investments Z A HEEE R - (1,570)
Loss on fair value change of REWE 2N TFE
investment property HE)EHE - 145
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) TFEWMUR, (WoREE)
of inventories 749 (354)
Share-based payment expense VARRAD R AL A
NFRFEZ 2,402 —
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A E IR 2 #iH 665 300
Depreciation of property, /E
plant and equipment mEIE 2,674 1,771
Operating cash flows before movements LEBEAREFRIZ
in working capital KEREME 19,744 61,379
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =& (Em) SR (6,663) 3,372
Decrease/(increase) in trade and 2 5 R HE A EUER K
other receivables B, () 10,756 (6,989)
Decrease in held for trading RIEEERERD
investments - 1,891
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 RE A TR
other payables CRA) /180 (20) 5,588
Cash generated from operations KEEFFEIRE 23,817 65,241
Income taxes refunded REIFTEH - 74
Income taxes paid SERIZIEES (14,233) (5,180)
Net cash generated from KRB TSI F 5
operating activities 9,584 60,135
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

R AT TR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 22 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

2015 b 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
BRE B¥ETT BT
Cash flows from investing activities BRETDREELRE
Interest received 2 HFE 2,171 1,319
Placement of short-term deposits FEHRIRTTIE 3K (9,647) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEE - BE
plant and equipment N EEABFT1SR0R 25 56
Purchases of property, BEWE  HENMEHE
plant and equipment (2,972) (13,408)
Deposit for acquisition of property, WHEYZE « BB
plant and equipment NG i (6,348) —
Purchase of leasehold land BEHEL - (20,859)
Purchase of investment property BEREME - (6,839)
Advances to directors MESRMEHR - (40,465)
Disposal of subsidiaries BN A 30 = (1,031)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEE TR ST (16,771) (81,227)
Cash flows from financing activities METHREREERE
Interest paid BAIFIE - (1,239)
Dividends paid AR E (30,000) —
Proceeds from issue of new shares BT TS 50R 236,000 —
Share issue cost A& BT AR (8,267) —
New bank loans raised FGIRITER - 25,992
Repayments of bank loans BERITERK - (39,653)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEBAMG(FTA)
financing activities e F5E 197,733 (14,900)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRRSEEFEY
cash equivalents |/, (&) R8E 190,546 (35,992)
Cash and cash equivalents FHRE
at the beginning of year REASEERY 65,059 101,193
Effect of foreign exchange EFSEmpE
rates changes (859) (142)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRBASEED
at the end of year 254,746 65,059
Representing: K&
Bank balances and cash RITEER LIRS 264,393 65,059
Short-term deposits with maturity =& A A ERIER9
over three months FEHISRI TR (9,647) —
254,746 65,059

J/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W05 W B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2015 2 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Island and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
and ultimate parent is Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited (“Genwealth”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is principally engaged in developing, marketing, selling
and distributing of personal care products, health care products
and household products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the current
year:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Recoverable Amount Disclosures

for Non-financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge

Accounting

HK(FRIC) — Int 21 Levies
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB W W B i

For the year ended 31 March 2015 22 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“*HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception®

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle*

2.

FERE T MBI BB
HER ([BERMKEREE
Al 1))

RANERERLEN] REERT 2 EA
PR E ER Y EE AR EENAFEE K
BEFEZFBRE MR, AR
BRI BEERERTE

AELE AR IZATE A A T EB/ME R AR
EMZ R BT BBV B MEE
U

BBMHRELER ERTA"
FE95%

BB BEREER RERLERE 2
F 145

BB IS 4R BEEAHIWAS
E 1555

BB IS RE 4R EEHEE

1055k & BENAE
EB et £ NCIPAE
S 2857 ZEET AR BEHER
TR
EARPBRELER REHRE:
105% ERERE

BB ISR E R ABREY IS
F12H BB SE 155
YEBISE 285k~

1BRTAR
BB IEREER B A & 575
1157 2 IBFT A 2
& EAS
BB EREER BBV BERE
1BRTAR ZERI| 2010 4F
220124
APz FE
IRHETEE ©
BB BEmELER BRYBERE
1BETAR ZERI| 2011 4F
220134
APz FE
RHETEE ¢

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE 73



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B W05 W B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2015 2 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERFTIRKEITEBME
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA ([ BERBNBREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) Al 1))

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB ELER EBMBRE
2012-2014 Cycle® EHIEN Y2012
E2014 5
BEZFE
TR ©
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative® EBGFTERE 19 HEATES
ZAERT AR
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable BAGF LR BB AR
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation F165 K T R
and Amortisation® BEAGHER %S
38/ ZERT AR
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants® BA SR B¥  AEM
and HKAS 41 E169 R ae
EAEGFER
FE AR ZAEETAR
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee BB R RERF
Contributions* F19 AR A T2 BB
e
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate AR BN B ISR
Financial Statements® 27 R ZAER] A 2 RS
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, ! 201841 A1 Bz & Fth 2 FEH
with earlier application permitted. FIAER - AIZATER -
2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or 2 M20165F1 A1 Bz &FRZ BHF
after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted. ERABYBHmE R EIRFER - 7]
RRIERA -
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, E M2017 1 A1 Bz &Rt 2 FEH
with earlier application permitted. AR - AIRATFER ©
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with 4 M201467 A1 Bz &RE 2 FEH
earlier application is permitted. AR AIZRTER o
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, ] R20165F1 1Bz &R 2 FEH
with earlier application permitted. AR - AIZATER o
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with & R2014F7 A1 Bz % Ria 2 FEH

limited exceptions.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
the new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

° has the power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods

are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

L the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation or a partial disposal of interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All'other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinguency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount of
obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the revenue recognition policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

3. EESHBE#®E)

EARk TS (48)
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e (E)
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98

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on
a product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory
items. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions.

Estimated impairment of trade and other
receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

fhEr REABIE R EE IR ()

HEtREARREFET AR - HE
FHERHERT R EER] AT HIR - AlE
EZHERER - WER]RRFERR K
ARKHEARE - RIS ST HAR SR K HAfE
TJ‘EE,’.\J °

AT RIS SRR E T — B
EMEEMBERAESSIMENHAR
EPNEN O ER N SRSV ESE PN
R e

FERE

AREEREN SRS BIERRE
TR RN 8 B I BN B
WiFEIRR R - EREEERE
SR OB RIRE R B IR A3 BB
B AT RBUFE -

5 R EMBEWFAENARE

ERBRREBENTERER - AKE
SERMEARRRASIRE  BEEIEN
THREREERAERENSREENR
KREBRFE (AR L HERFENER
ME)FHEO G RKR S RERECH
BREREENRREEER) WEEET
B - MERRICRE REENTAL - Al
H&HREARERSE -
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment property

Investment property is stated at fair value determined by
independent professional valuers based on direct comparison
approach assuming sale of the property interest in its existing
state and making references to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant markets. In relying on the valuation
report of the independent professional valuers, the management
has exercised its judgment and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the market conditions prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Any changes in the market
conditions will affect the fair value of the investment property of
the Group.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group’s
revenue represents the amount received and receivable for the
sales of goods.

Information reported to the board of directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under “HKFRS 8 Operating Segments” are as follows:

1. Product Development Segment — sales of products
developed by the Group under own brands

2. Brand Development and Management Segment — sales
and distribution of products with exclusive distribution
rights

3. Trading of Goods Segment — sales and distribution of
products purchased from authorised dealers, independent
traders, manufacturers or parallel importers

fhEr REABIE R EE IR ()

REWMENDVE
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HE B AL AR F s AR YR 8
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100

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZEER#)
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results DEBUA K AR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results TONRIR A S RS E D HEI DB ARE
by reportable and operating segment. B RSEER DT ©
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE2015F3A 31 HILEE
N
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods
Segment Segment Segment Total
ER SRR3R K&
RS TEIB BERHE =11
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT BT AT ERTT
Revenue BA
External sales HINEE 166,803 33,823 14,333 214,959
Segment profit/(loss) AEbaF/ (FB) 22,500 3,927 (341) 26,086
Interest income FLBHA 2,171
Unallocated expenses AOEHAX (12,807)
Profit before tax PR AR A 15,450

J
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2014

WARDEBEER#)

DEMBARREE)

HE2014F3A31HILFE

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management of Goods
Segment Segment Segment Total
Em mERER Em
FE D EEHH BENH At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT
Revenue BA
External sales HINEE 188,851 42,947 21,373 253,171
Segment profit DA 50,562 8,887 76 59,525
Interest income FIBUWA 1,319
Gain on fair value change of FHEEBREZ
held for trading investments NEEB 1,570
Finance costs BERA (1,239)
Profit before tax ERTL A A 61,175

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss
from each segment without allocation of corporate expenses,
interest income, gain on fair value change of held for trading
investments and finance costs. This is the measure reported to
the board of directors for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

RN ER 2 @R BURBEM 3 ATl A %
B2 @ HEAAR - D ERET,EEE
FEDEERE, KR 2 M (L |D AR
EFX - FEBWA - HHEEEREZA
FEEZHKRELBEKR) - lLIAE
ZERERNEMFHAD BRA MBS
ZYEHE
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZEBER )
(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERER

ToRIR A IRE R LD ERE DA%
BWEENMABNDMN

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment.

4 3\
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥ETT BT
Segment assets SEEE
Product Development Segment EmmAEDE 81,908 80,253
Brand Development and iR E R EE D E
Management Segment 9,460 10,480
Trading of Goods Segment EmEEDH 3,026 2,492
Total segment assets DEEELE 94,394 93,225
Unallocated Foval 267,720 65,059
Consolidated assets EEE 362,114 158,284
Segment liabilities SHBAR
Product Development Segment EmAEDE 23,063 23,792
Brand Development and m R R EE DS
Management Segment 3,438 3,269
Trading of Goods Segment EmEENH 931 421
Total segment liabilities DEPEEERR 27,432 27,482
Unallocated PVl - 36,507
Consolidated liabilities meEafE 27,432 63,989

L

J/

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RESS D ERRIA R LD BEIEL BR S
allocating resources between segments: fic :

PIEEED D RRAKLEDER (RTT
RN ® R PRIEDIBRRIN) ©

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than *
bank balances and cash and tax refundable.

e gl liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than s MBARENEALE DI (BN
dividend payable and current tax liabilities. iR 2 K ENEARR I B EBRAI) ©
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(Continued)
Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BB W W B i

For the year ended 31 March 2015 22 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

WARDEBEER#)

BE2015F3A31HILFE

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods
Segment Segment Segment Total
ERMRE RMHARR RREE
o TEIB o | =11
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT BT AT ERTT
Amounts included in the measure FES D EFIESE
of segment profit or loss or AP BB AR E5E -
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets FRBEENE 8,950 249 106 9,305
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE(7H & 708 2 #H 665 - - 665
Depreciation of property, M BERSHEINE
plant and equipment 2,385 203 86 2,674
Gain on disposal of property, HENE - BE
plant and equipment BiEloke 19 4 2 25
Write-down of inventories FEHR 749 - - 749
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZ#&ER @)

(Continued)
Other segment information (Continued) Hithn B & #(2)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE201453HA31 AIEFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management of Goods
Segment Segment Segment Total
EmAE  mERER EmEE
A BEAE nE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT BT BT
Amounts included in the measure FES D EFIESE
of segment profit or loss or AR BEERTA 2R
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets FRBDEERE 40,696 274 136 41,106
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEI7H & 708 2 #H 300 - - 300
Depreciation of property, % BERSEIINE
plant and equipment 1,476 197 98 1,771
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property,  HEWE  FE K&
plant and equipment Ml (B18) @ 7 3 8
Loss on fair value change of RENENTEESER
investment property 145 — — 145
Reversal of write-down of inventories ~ F SR A 354 - - 354
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical Information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on location of the operations. Information
about the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on
the geographical location of the assets.

5. WARDIBER 2

I E R

AEEREL PEARKME(F

BRAKERBINDEFHBABRZ
REEBNUESID 2 - BRAAKE
FRBEENEIZEEMNHIEN B S

DEF -

Revenue from external customers REINBEFHUBA
( \
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT IT
Hong Kong B 183,905 221,556
PRC HE 22,102 21,115
Taiwan = 8,952 10,500
214,959 253,171
|\ J
Non-current assets ERBEE
e ~\
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong B 5,287 4,994
PRC H 43,136 37,350
Taiwan = 187 256
48,610 42,600
(U J

“ER-RFER TSR (BB ERERAE 105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W05 W B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2015 2 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

106

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRZ#ER #)

(Continued)
Geographical Information (Continued) Ui E R (E)
Information about major customers EHEXEEFHNER
Revenues from customers for the corresponding years REEFELRASEREERBB
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as 10% B PRI ALT
follows:
e ~
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Customer A' BERA 42,132 46,111
Customer B' EFB 25,809 25,805
& J
1 Revenue from Product Development, and Brand Development and y REEMMABEARMERZEREERDED
Management Segments. B o
OTHER INCOME 6. HUA
(" \
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥ETT BT T
Interest income on bank deposits RITF A BHA 2,171 1,319
Rental income Ha2A 299 50
Forfeiture of customers’ deposits RWEFiEe 101 100
Compensation from a brand proprietor ~ —FmkEER ABE L FH(E
for breach of contract 215 300
Others Hith 785 172
3,571 1,941
\\ J
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HittWsEREE
N
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Gain on fair value change of RIEEEREZ
held for trading investments NHEFE - 1,570
Loss on fair value change of KEWME Z A HEZEEE
investment property - (145)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - HE &
plant and equipment B0l 25 8
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain HNEF (B518) /s (336) 525
311) 1,058
|\ J
FINANCE COSTS 8. EEMAK
4 3\
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF B
— wholly repayable within five years — AR5 FRBEERE - 1,135
— not wholly repayable within five years — HER 5 FRBHEE - 104
- 1,239
|\ J
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9.

108

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FIBHMAX
4 3\
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Current tax: RIVEATR IR
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BAEFEH 4,776 11,203
(Over)/under provision in prior year: BEFE (BERE)
BETR
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BBNFH (377) 268
Total income tax recognised RIBE=ERZ FTEHE
in profit or loss 4,399 11,471
& J

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong for both years.

No provision for taxation has been provided for companies in
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands as they are
not subject to any tax during the current and prior years.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided
for the PRC subsidiary as the taxable income for the year ended
31 March 2015 was wholly offset by the tax losses brought
forward and there was no assessable profits for year ended 31
March 2014.

No provision for Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been
provided for the Taiwan subsidiary as there was no assessable
profits for both years.

REZMEFEREEELSRAREN
HtERTE RN IR16.5% T R E
R SR -

AR AFELBEFERESHENEE
BRREHSNRARBAGNERTIR - &
WA F R AT BB

RN EKEARRREE2015F3 A
STAIEFEMNERTBRABEE 2T
EHEBE2EEERBZE2014F3 A31
HIEFEW EERERTER] - R
TR B EPTIS I o

B & &M B A BN % (B 5 A
A ERBUE R - ML E|HE S ELR
SHiEE -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9. FEHEX®
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FEMBZ N EGEEEREMETE
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and W REBRTLADE MR T -

other comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Profit before tax B 5 A A 15,450 61,175
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEBNFHNE16.5%
of 16.5% AERHE 2,549 10,094
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PAIIB A R E 2
for tax purpose 2,736 797
Tax effect of income not taxable BAGRMMANE B2
for tax purpose (347) (219)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR ERFIBRENRIEHE 82 580
Utilisation of tax losses not previously B R TR SRR IEE 1B
recognised (267) —
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries £ E b Rl ARE R4S & KB B
operating in other jurisdictions NIRRT AR EEH A2 33 1)
(Over)/under provision in prior year BEFE (BEREE)
BETE (377) 268
Others HAit (10) 32
Tax charge for the year FEMIBZH 4,399 11,471
& J
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10.

110

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

10. FREF

FRaEAENGR, (GEA) THISE :

Ve

N\

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Staff costs, including BIXRA(BEESEHE)
directors’ emoluments 31,417 29,701
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  F&{ITHE FIE 7 # 54 665 300
Depreciation of property, Yz - BEREEIITE
plant and equipment 2,674 1,771
Cost of inventories recognised as ERBAINFERA
an expense 89,927 108,530
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR N S 650 420
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) FEMR, (MR )
of inventories (included in cost of sales)  (Ft AS4ERA) 749 (354)
Gross rental income from wEME 2 BERBWA
investment property (299) (50)
Less: direct operating expenses W BEREERY 55 18
Net rental income from BEME 2 FHEESHA
investment property (244) (32)
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11. EE - T ETHRAEBREES
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS <
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERIETHAEMS
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief ENHENAAREEREETHAER
executive of the Company were as follows: HIBEEn T -
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE2015F3A31HILEE
f Other emoluments )
Hfthe
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other Share-based benefits
Fees benefits ~ payments  schemes Total
ek  DkhE  EBHER
fie EftiEd ER®AR  HHER &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥Tn ERTn ERTT  E%TR  E%TR
Executive directors yfEs
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note ) ¥R (D) - 1,801 1,289 % 3,204
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZZL - 1,469 758 18 2,245
Non-executive director FUTER
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERNT 83 - - - 83
Independent non-executive BUFATES
directors
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (Note (i) TRk (M) 10 - - - 10
Dr. Tang Sing Hing Kenny HERET 83 - - - 83
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung Gy s 83 - - - 83
359 3,360 2,047 42 5,808
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 1. E5 - TETHRABRES

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued) &2
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERERTRABME ()
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE2014F3A31HILEFE
Other emoluments
Hihii&
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits
Fees benefits schemes Total
Hek RIRGER
e HAiaH REIGSS A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT

Executive directors RiTES

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note () Z OO (HEE () - 1,762 22 1,784

Ms. Kwan Lai Man BETLL = 1,430 15 1,445

Non-executive director FRITER

Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERRL - - = -

Independent non-executive BI#TES

directors

Dr. Tang Sing Hing Kenny HBREET - - - -

Mr. Tsui Nam Hung friaERE - - - -
- 3,192 37 3,229

Notes: BdaE :

0] Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the chief executive officer of the Company. i) ZONTREBARR BN TGS, -

(i) Appointed on 25 September 2014. (i)  H2014F9 A 25 HEZ(T -
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND

11. EE - T ETHRAEBREES

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continueq) <z
Employees’ emoluments EEME
i 2015 | 2014
(Number of (Number of
individuals) individuals)
(AB) (N80
Directors 55 2 2
Non-director individuals FFERFERAL 3 3
5 highest-paid individuals hEERHMAL 5 5

The emoluments of the above non-director, highest paid
individuals were as follows:

HiiFEEFSHMALTOMSOT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT

Salaries and other benefits e hEMEF 1,551 1,612

Share-based payments VAR 17 B E i 80 S 3R 272 =
Contributions to retirement benefits RREFFHEIHE R

schemes 48 43

Total emoluments & 42 =8 1,871 1,655

_ J

Note: The emoluments of each of the above non-director, highest paid
individuals were below HK$1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the Company’s directors or the five highest paid individuals of
the Group (including directors and employees) as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2014: Nil).

None of the Company’s directors waived any emoluments
during the year (2014: Nil).

ffet : LB FFESERRHMALOMESH S
1,000,000 BTTA T ©

TR AEEYEARABEMESSL
AEBEREREHMAL(BRESER
BE)XNME - AERBEEMESR I
B 7N & [ 1) HR D Sl BE BB AR B (2014 4F
&) -

FR ARAREFHERNETAME
(20144 - f%) -
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12.

114

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

12. BIREF|

RAREB ARG ERERLEERT
TER T BIEAES T

e ~
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Earnings 2F)
Earnings for the purpose of basic R EFRER
and diluted earnings per share NEEERF 2 BF
(Profit for the year attributable to (RAREAA
owners of the Company) FEIEFA®RF) 11,051 49,704
> <
2015 2014
’000 000
TFh& T
Number of shares B8
Weighted average number of UGt EGRERETF
ordinary shares for the purpose of 2 E B ANRE 8L
basic earnings per share 691,507 600,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: @M 2 BEE ST E
— Share options — MR E - N/A TNE A
Weighted average number of R E SRE SR T
ordinary shares for the purpose of 2 TR NET L
diluted earnings per share 691,507 N/A @A

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share for the years ended 31
March 2015 and 2014 has been retrospectively adjusted to
reflect 300,000,000 shares issued upon capitalisation on 16
October 2014.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2015 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s options because the exercise price of those options
was higher than the average market price for shares for the
year.

H £2015%F K2014%43A31H It F
ERANUGESREARRBT 2 L@
R HHEERWAREUARMMN2014
FI0R16RETER LM ETZ
300,000,000 AZAZAR °

HEHZE2015F3A3IBLEFEZS
AR 2 R s I SRR R AN B 2 B AR i
BT RAAZEBREZITHEES
RAFERRD < FHTIE o
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. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueq)

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the year ended
31 March 2014 as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding during that period.

12. BRER (&)

AREZE2014F3A31 BIEFERW
\|EITEINBEL R - MITEZT)
ZHE SREERR -

DIVIDENDS . RE
( 3\
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Dividends recognised as distribution RERNERED KA E
during the year
— Interim dividends — RHIRLE - 20,146
— Special dividend — FFRIRR B = 30,000
- 50,146
. J

On 3 July 2013, the Company declared and paid an interim
dividend of approximately HK$146,000 to Genwealth by way
of distribution in specie of all the issued shares in Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical”) indirectly held by the Company.

On 15 October 2013, the Company declared an interim
dividend of HK$20,000,000 to Genwealth. The dividend was
settled through offsetting the amounts due from the directors
during the year ended 31 March 2014.

On 24 January 2014, the Company declared a special dividend
of HK$30,000,000 to Genwealth.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 of HK$0.01 (2014:
Nil) per ordinary share has been proposed by the directors and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting.

R2013F7 A3 ARBINUNEYH
AR RIEEFBENANERLE(FE)
BRAR([AMERISE|) 2B 31T
ARDE A R ADTE IR MR A HAAR B
#9146,000/8 7T °

R2013F 108158 » AR A MHT=E
T K # HA IR & 20,000,000 7 o BB
EREBZE2014F3A31 HILFEBR
EIHEWE FHRIB T o

R20144E1 248  AAFEPTE
R4 RIS, 30,000,000 7 7T ©

|m}

RIFEHKRE  EFEEZBRNEHE
20153 A1 AIEFEZRBKRES
IREBIR0.01 BT (20144F - T) - 1
AERFREERREAS LIE -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

116

14. Y% - BMERRXRE

Group *KE
Leasehold Leasehold
landheld  Buildingheld ~ Construction  Furniture and Motor  improvements
forownuse  forownuse inprogress  equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
RERRE  BEERM iR
HRLH ¥ HBIE  BHURRG AE KBRKE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTL BETTL BETTL BB BB BB BB
Cost ¥
At 1 April 2013 R013F4A1H 3,021 1,359 8,281 6,642 4,79 4,383 28,480
Addttions HE S 7,642 497 1,948 1,229 2,492 13,408
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - 8,778) (882) - 481) (10,141)
Disposals (& - - - (76) (250) = (326)
Exchange adjustments BHAE - (169) - (37 (1) (56) (267)
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3A31H 3,021 8,838 = 7,1% 5,762 6,338 31,154
Addttions HE = = = 1,429 608 935 2972
Disposals e - - - - (283) = (283)
Bxchange adjustments BiE - 8 = (12 1 ) )
At 31 March 2015 R2015E3A31H 3,021 8,846 = 8,612 6,088 1,267 33,834
Accumulated depreciation B EHTE
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 A1 834 838 - 5,097 3917 3,734 14,420
Provided for the year FRRE 61 168 = 671 570 301 1,771
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAR - - - (777) - (468) (1,245)
Eliminated on disposals R EREE - - - (28) (250) - (279)
Fxchange adjustments ERAE - ? - (26) ) @ (39
At 31 March 2014 R2014%£3A31H 895 1,004 - 4937 4234 3,563 14,633
Provided for the year FERE 6 29 - 96 530 758 2674
Eiminated on disposals REERHS - - = = (283) - (283
Exchange adjustments EH - (1) - (15) - () 1)
At 31 March 2015 R2015%E3A31H 966 1,332 - 5918 4,481 4316 17,003
Carrying amounts IFaEE
A 31 March 2015 pootsgsAsE [ 28 15M - oM 1T o 16,831)
L
At 31 March 2014 Roo14E3 A31A 21% 7834 - 2258 1528 2775 16,521
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line

basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land held for

own use

Building held for own use 3%
Furniture and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Leasehold improvements
and fixtures

Over the lease term

25% or over the lease term
whichever is the shorter

The Group’s leasehold land held for own use is located in Hong

Kong under medium-term lease.

14. ¥ - BERRE#)

bz - BB MEEERE (BREZT
BN NBEAREIL T FRITE

FEERMN RHER
et

FEERMET 3%

ERINSE ] 25%

=2 25%

MEMERER 25% AL E AR
KE (A&

RAE)

AEBFIEEANEE L WRUNES
RARBELORFE -

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS . AHEERE
Group AEKHE
(" \
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥ETT BT
At the beginning of year REA) 20,194 10,229
Addition NE - 20,859
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  JE{IH & FIH ~ # 4 (665) (300)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AT - (10,154)
Exchange adjustments b H AR 25 (440)
At the end of year RER 19,554 20,194
L J
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

16.

118

15. AR ERE®)

Group (Continued) FKE(E)
e ~
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BLERMME 2247
Current asset (included in trade and MEEE (B BT
other receivables) g5 NE M FIEA ) 663 663
Non-current asset EMEBNEE 18,891 19,531
19,554 20,194
| J
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEEZBENHERERE
\
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong REBRINZ HE T
— medium-term lease — R ERFE A 19,554 20,194
| J
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. IREWE
Group x5H
( 3\
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
At the beginning of year REH) 6,548 —
Addition RE - 6,839
Decrease in fair value recognised R R
in profit or loss ANV — (145)
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 8 B 7 (146)
At the end of year RER 6,555 6,548
\\§ J
The Group’s property interest held under operating lease to AEERBEEHERFEARNES

earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose is measured
using the fair value model and is classified and accounted for as

investment property.

SEEAEERENYEESIERAR
FEEAFTE XD BERINERED

£
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

The Group’s investment property is situated on land in the PRC
under medium-term lease.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at 31 March
2015 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Shing Yin Appraisal Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at 31 March
2014 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by Stirling Appraisals Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at 31 March
2015 and 31 March 2014 was determined based on direct
comparison method assuming sale of the property interest in
its existing state and making references to comparable market
observable transactions of similar properties in the same
locations and conditions as available in the relevant market.
There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best
use of the property is its current use.

Details of the Group’s investment property and information
about the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Fair value at 31 March

H3A 31 HHAFE

16. REWHE (%)

AEEZREMERUNTEN LTI - B
REAFEAD o

AEBIEEYEN2015F3 A31BHY
ANFEDHENSESEBENE LS
ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%mﬁﬂ@ﬁ@“ﬁﬁa
HEEITHHEREEER -

AEBIEEYEN2014F3 A31BHY
ANEEDHEAEEBRERENBLS
BRFEMER T ETEER A FIKZ
HEREITREEREEER -

AREBIEMER2015F3A31A K
2014F 3 A31 A2 R FEEZEELR
/f:FE BREMERESIZERRHEE -

W2 E R R TISAT I A AR
B RIFHERHREYERN B L EmIEA]
BRRS - hEFERE—FEMRAE
) o

RIS RO ATEE WSS RE
EFR AR IR A o

AEBRENENFBENEBATES
REHERIT

Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Investment property hierarchy and key input(s)
P DEE HES &
BEME 2015 2014 & REEHANE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Commercial property 6,555 6,548 Level 2 Direct comparison method based on
unit located market observable transactions of
in the PRC similar properties and adjust to
reflect the conditions and locations
of the subject property
R B R YR BB L E-M BRI E 2 15 A BN
ROBEELBOEGTE - WHE
AR R R E
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17. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

17. A—ERB A RINKRE

Company ENF
s A
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BETT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRRL - AR 71,618 71,618
. J
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting i

EFHIR - AEEMBARFIFET

period are set out below. PN
Place Paid up
of incorporation/ Class of issued/ Proportion
establishment/ shares registered ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operations held capital held by the Company Principal activities
EBTR
3 1A HRERM BERS SAFEERRAE
MELAFRE B/ e e e ol HEMEF L 1=1:40] FERE
2015 2014
Hin Sang Group British Virgin Ordinary US$30,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Holding Limited Islands LiER 30,000 £ 7T (direct) (direct) RERR
TEEEERER AR EBRUHE (Ei#) (B#%)
HM Advertising Hong Kong Ordinary HK$880,000 100% 100% Formulating and implementing
Company Limited N LRk 880,000i#7 | (indirect) | (indirect) overall marketing and
(F#) (Fi%) branding strategies and
preparing and controlling
annual budgets for
marketing activities for
individual branded products
HIET RIE TR RS S R AR R S
DA B2 i e 2 5 M ol P2 2 o
EHEYNEERE
—
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17. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

17. A—ENRBARINKRE#)

Place Paid up
of incorporation/ Class of issued/ Proportion
establishment/ shares registered ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operations held capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRTR
301 #HHRR WERE FNRRERAE
MEAERE B/ e oL HREF R FERY
2015 2014
Chong Sang (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,800 100% 100% Trading and distribution of
Company Limited /s LRk 1,800 #7T (indirect) | (indirect) skin care products,
Bl (BB BRAR (F3#E) (%) personal care products
and household products
BERDHEEER EAAZRE
EaRREER
Hin Sang Hong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$280,000 100% 100% Investment holding;
Company Limited BE Lk 280,000/ | (indirect) | (indirect) brand development
(*Hin Sang Hong (HK)") (%) (F%) and management;
PTHEITER AT and development, sales
([FT417(B#))) and distribution of
health care products,
personal care products
and household products
REABR  mERERER
REE - HERD HREER -
BAREERRREES
Hin Sang Hong Trading PRC Registered RMB65,000,000 | 100% 100% Wholesale of health care
(Shenzhen) Limited** F capital AE® (indirect) | (indirect) products of Hin San (£74)
fTETE S (R T EA 65,000,000 | (FI%) (R#) and skin care products
BRARM of Beautymate (WD)
in the PRC
A BB DT A MR EE
i RO B E
Beautymate Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Online sale of products
Hong Kong Limited B L 10,000 #7T (indirect) | (indlirect) distriouted and/or
(F#) () developed by the Group
BEHERRENER/
FFAENER
—
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17. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 17. R—EHEARNRE#)

Place Paid up
of incorporation/ Class of issued/ Proportion
establishment/ shares registered ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operations held capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRTR
301 #HHRR BERE FNRRERAE
MEAERE B/ e oL HREF R FERY
SR
2015 2014
Hong Kong British Virgin Ordinary US$2,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Pharmaceutical & Islands LRk 2,000 %7T (indirect) | (indirect) REER
Research Institute EBERHE (F#%) (F#)
Co., Ltd.
BB HEHR R
BRAT
Yaome Nihon Corporation British Virgin Ordinary US$2,000 100% 100% Inactive
AARABEKA S Islands gl 2,000% 7T (indirect) | (indirect) NER
EBRRHE (F) (Fig)
Hong Kong British Virgin Ordinary US$2,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Medicine Manufactory Islands L 2,000% 5T (indirect) | (indirect) REZR
Holdings Co., Ltd. EBEAES () (F#2)
EHEAERER
ARRA]
Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
Pharmaceutical & % Tk 18T (indirect) | (indirect) NaRE
Research Institute (F#&) (Fi#)
Co., Limited
BRI
BRAT
Beautymate International Taiwan Registered NT$24,000,000 100% 100% Wholesale of skin care
Limited* aig capital Ha% (indirect) | (indirect) products under the brand
ENOFEBRBRAR &R 24,000,000 7% (F%) (@%) of Beautymate (A0 )
in Taiwan
REERERNDFRE
HEEEm
—
* The English name is for identification only. * ES &L HlI
t A wholly foreign-owned enterprise. 2 —FNEEE R -
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. INVENTORIES 18. &
Group *5KE
e ~
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BT
Raw materials RAAE 1,791 640
Finished products for resale HEEK S 17,099 12,359
18,890 12,999
|\ J
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EZ R HMEWRIE
Group xKRE
(" 3\
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 21,510 32,368
Prepayments to suppliers M)t FE RS TR SRIE - 137
Prepaid listing expenses A EmAX - 628
Prepaid lease payments TENEERE 663 663
Prepayments for other expenses HAFZ B RIE 3,509 2,562
Other deposits HEfhize
(mainly including rental and (FERFEHEE R
building management fee deposits) BFERB%S) 1,107 993
Other receivables E A R IR 105 275
26,394 37,626
g J

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE
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19.

124

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period, presented based
on invoice date:

10. EZ R EMERRIEZ)

UTARBERRERERAERNE
ZRMGRN KRR DT (ZERAHE
51l)

( \
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
0 - 30 days 0ZE 30K 7,163 14,866
31 - 60 days 31EB60X 8,827 7,104
61 - 90 days 61 Z 90K 4,206 8,358
Over 90 days BB 90K 1,314 2,040
21,510 32,368

U J

The Group’s sales to most customers are made on cash on
delivery, whilst the Group generally allows an average credit
period of 60 days (with 15 days of grace period in certain
cases) to certain major trade customers with established trading
records.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customers.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below
for aging analysis) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not recognised an allowance
for doubtful debts because there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Group to
the counterparty.

AEERARE D FEPHHEANGRMZ
FRET - MARE—REX TR AL
REMNETERESEF60RMNTFH
EEH FETEATTEA15RRER

REMEAFHEER - AEBEFEEE
EPFNEEEREMEEPEERFER
B o

EXREEZREGIREBREN RSB
BERFEBANS R (R T X RN
i) BERRNEEERAEHRERE
BRERSBINEREAAKRE  AEE
WETL B S BER R R - A%E
WEL % S EHRTT B EE Rl E
EEIEA - TEAREBRNRZEHF
IR RIR I SHRX T E R R E R ©
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19.

(Continued)

Aging of trade receivables that are past due but
not impaired

ESREMEWFIEE)

EEHERBENE S BKRR
fRiR

4 \
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BT
61-90 days 61 290K 4,206 8,358
Over 90 days BB 90K 1,314 2,040
5,520 10,398

(U J

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of each
reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due
to the customer base being large and unrelated.

At the end of the reporting period, the amount due from a
company controlled by a relative of Mr. Pang Siu Hin included in
the Group’s trade receivables are:

HEEESRIIBERE AT - A
SEEEHNGERLEEEREEEW
SHEERE - BEESRKFRRI(E
EERRTHBREAES - ANTPE
BAREFZHETHE - WEERR
MEREEAR -

R EHRERE - BRRAEEES
FEURIAT IR Z DITRE— R R
FEPEHIE A R FRIBLR

( )

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

B¥TT BT

Brighten Hong Limited (“Brighten Hong”) $4#17BR A= ([ 481817 ]) - 1,909
. J
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20.

21.

126

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Group

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.001% to 4.04% (2014: 0.001% to 2.85%) per annum.

At 31 March 2015, certain of the Group’s bank balances
and cash with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$11,958,000 (2014: HK$40,200,000) were denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The government of the PRC has
implemented foreign exchange control and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the government of the PRC.

Company

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.8% to 1.25% (2014: Nil) per annum.

20. RITEBREE

F5&H

SRITHEBIREF0.001%E4.04% (2014
F 1 0.001% E2.85%) ) T 35 Fl K 5
g

o

MR2015F3A31H ' AEBEENE
11,958,000 78 7T (2014 £ : 40,200,000
BIL) WA TRITEHREBE S UAARK
(TAR® D EHE - AR IEBIRR
s LR BEHLBRERE - PERNEE
THNEES - ESELPEDIFINEZH
BT B e B0 BE 5. BR I FTAEFR ©

e 3/

RITHEBRIRTF0.8% 2 1.25% (2014
F o E)NTSFIERET R o

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EGREMENIE
Group *EE
(" 3\
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Trade payables B S FIE 10,246 16,104
Receipts in advance TEW IR 1,284 3,165
Accruals (mainly including salaries EETER (X281
and advertising expenses) FehkEEAX) 15,902 8,213
27,432 27,482
L J
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 22 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables
at the end of the reporting period, presented based on invoice

21. ESREMENFIE®)

ATRRBREHRERERNEENE
ZENFIAN KRBT (REREHZ

date: ) :

4 3\
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT
0 - 30 days 0&E 30X 4,087 8,489
31 - 60 days 31E60XK 4,119 4,452
61 - 90 days 61 290X 1,353 1,947
Over 90 days B 90 K 687 1,216
10,246 16,104

| J
At the end of the reporting period, the amount due to a RmERRERE - BERNEAEEE S

company controlled by Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man
included in the Group’s trade payables are:

JENSIRT RN BZEDITRE R HE
RGN R BNRIER

Vs

N\

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BRETT BT

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical AR BILE 289 —

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due from/to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE

22 FEIFEAY — R F B X B RR0R

R Ly A — B A ) 30 4
0 BB REREREE -
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23.

128

DEFERRED TAX

At 31 March 2015, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$2,700 (2014: HK$131,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

At 31 March 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$7,636,000 (2014: HK$8,563,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses in Hong
Kong may carry forward indefinitely. The unrecognised tax
losses in the PRC will expire as follows:

23 RERIH

201543 A31 8 REEM TR
TR EZREYB2,7008 T (2014 F -
131,000 7T ) © FRF R 2R i A1) B DA
BT MIES A AR R R
REERBEE -

MR20156F3 A31H  AEBEMAEH
FRIEET 18 4947 ,636,00078 7T (20144 ¢
8,563,000 7T ) + A] A R 85 R 0k
F o ARARIEFIEE AT - BT ERL
EBRBEBERREERIEEE - &8
RSB R SR - KERNPE
RIS EBAEN TR REER

- \
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BEEFIT

Tax losses expiring in T Z1 s P i S O AR TS I 48
— 2015 t0 2016 — 2015 F E 2016 F 2,577 2,965
— 2017 t0 2018 — 2017 E £ 20184 2,120 2,118
— 2018 to 2019 — 2018 FE 20194 952 951
5,649 6,034

& J
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24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, R
Number of Share
shares capital
Bine A B
HK$’000
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each HRXEEO0.108 oAy L A%
Authorised: EBRE -
At 1 April 2013 and R2013F4 18R
31 March 2014 20143 A31H 800,000,000 80,000
Increase in number of JETE IR EX B 180
authorised shares (Note (i) (BFZEG)) 1,200,000,000 120,000
At 31 March 2015 R20154F 3 A31H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE:
At 1 April 2013 and R2013F 418K
31 March 2014 20143 A31H 300,000,000 30,000
Capitalisation issue (Note (ii)) BT (HIEE (i) 300,000,000 30,000
Issue of new shares (Note (iii)) BITHRR 0 (M 3E (i) 200,000,000 20,000
At 31 March 2015 MR20154F 3 A31 H 800,000,000 80,000

Notes:

U

(i)

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the sole shareholder
of the Company on 25 September 2014, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$80,000,000 to
HK$200,000,000 by the creation of an additional 1,200,000,000
shares of HK$0.10 each, ranking pari passu with the existing shares
in all respects.

Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the sole shareholder of
the Company on 25 September 2014 and conditional upon the
share premium account of the Company being credited as a result
of the issue of shares pursuant to the placing and public offering of
the Company’s shares, the Company issued additional 300,000,000
shares, credited as fully paid, to the shareholder of the Company on
16 October 2014.

On 16 October 2014, upon its listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the Company issued 200,000,000 new ordinary shares
at an offer price of HK$1.18 each and raised gross proceeds of
approximately HK$236,000,000.

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE

GEE

M

(i)

(il

RIEAQBME—IREN2014F9 A25
HBBEMNEERER © AARSBE—
# 18 3% 1,200,000,000 A% & % & {2 0.10
78 TC Y AR 19 18 5% TE AR 75 B3 80,000,000 7
JTIE 1N % 200,000,000 7T + #ZFH A5
EZHEEBERGFE A RSN -

BRIEAR DB ME— R ER2014F 9 A 25
HiBBMEERER RFARRA AIMARG
HERABEEERAHEEAAR
BRAD BT D MERSHERRTE - AR EIR
20144 10 A 16 AR AR A IR R BB/
77300,000,0008& ABRFIVERR 2 A& 15 ©

R20145F 10816 B » REFZFFER £
& - AREIAFR1.18 B L EE
Z%47200,000,000 T L@ - EBFR
BRIEEEEH) 236,000,000 87T ©
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 25. IR AERHNN

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company’s pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 25 September 2014 to recognise the contribution of
certain employees, executives or officers of the Group who have
made or will make to the growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
might be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
24,640,000.

No further options could be granted by the Company under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme upon the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

At 31 March 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 24,640,000 (2014: Nil),
representing 3.08% (2014 Nil) of the shares of the Company in
issue at that date.

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share

BRNMBENERETS

RARERAFEEAERESS (&
RAFEERBAREE | RIE2014
FORABHEBZRBEERD - A
BEASBETRE - TRABSSH
ABBAREENERMEL G EL
MERL

REBEXRARBE R B SIA ER
2z BREMMS RN B E &ZTE
838 24,640,000 B AR {7

BARRTRDRBRFFEIR Es - &
AFTERIEE R A& ARt
i — 15 IR -

R2015%F3A31 8 REEXAMAE
BRI IR R E R TEAIER
1 R B R (7 88 B A& 24,640,000 A% f%
D (201445 : &) - HER AR B RZ
H 23175 2.3.08% (20144 : 4) -

RIBERAFRER B BIME

Option Scheme are as follows: R 2 BT ¢
Number
of options Exercise price Exercisable
Tranche Date of grant granted per share Vesting period period
REAR e
#x = a8 "H®AE BERTER RER TER
HK$
BT
1 25/09/2014 23,040,000 0.826 25/09/2014 16/10/2015
—15/10/2019 —24/09/2024
2 25/09/2014 1,600,000 0.826 25/09/2014 16/10/2015
—15/10/2017 —24/09/2024
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Tranche 1 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall vest as follows:

U

(i)

(i)

(vi)

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2015 and
exercisable from 16 October 2015 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2016 and
exercisable from 16 October 2016 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2017 and
exercisable from 16 October 2017 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2018 and
exercisable from 16 October 2018 to 24 September 2024; and

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2019 and
exercisable from 16 October 2019 to 24 September 2024.

(b)  Tranche 2 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

shall vest as follows:

U

(i)

(i)

30% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2015 and
exercisable from 16 October 2015 to 24 September 2024;

30% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2016 and
exercisable from 16 October 2016 to 24 September 2024; and

40% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2017 and
exercisable from 16 October 2017 to 24 September 2024.

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE

25. LR BEBNSRE)
BRAMEBEIBRESTSE(Z)

GEE

@ REERRFEEABRESIIMERL
BRI

(i)

(vi)

20% H) i AR #E 15 7R 2015 10 A
16 BERB MR 2015610 A 16
HZE 20244 9 A 24 AHAMTE

20% K B8 A% 7 #5 7R 2016 F 10 A
16 AEEB R AR 2016410 A 16
HZE 202449 A 24 BEIMIT{E :

20% B B AR #E 18 7R 2017 510 A
16 HEBRATR2017F 108 16
BZE 202449 A 24 BEABIIT{E ;

20% B i AR #E 15 7R 2018 F 10 A
16 AERB MR 2018410 A 16
HZE 202449 A 24 BEARTT(E
54

20% K B8 AR #E #5 7R 20194 10 A
16 AEB R AIR2019F 10 A 16
HZE 202449 A 24 BEARMITIE ©

b)) REERRFEHERSHBERETSIMR L
BRI RSB AT

(i)

(i)

30% K B8 AR #E 15 1R 2015 10 A
16 BB AR 2015410 A 16
HZE20244 9 A 24 BHARTT{E

30% K B AR 7 15 1R 2016 £ 10 A
16 BB XA 2016410 A 16
HZE 202449 A 24 B #fE17(E :
X

40% K B AR #E 15 7R 2017 £ 10 A

16 BB R AR 2017410 A 16
HZE 202449 A 24 HEARTTIE »
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continueq)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

25. LR BEBNSRE)
BRAMEBEIBRESTSE(Z)

TREJIFARRANERAFREER

share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during xR & 2 BB RE
the year:
Granted
Category of Outstanding at during Outstanding at
participant Tranche 01/04/2014 the year 31/03/2015
R2014 % #2015
4A1H 3A31H
2HERR #R KITE FRBHHA KITHE
Directors 1 - 21,600,000 21,600,000
£
Employees 1 — 1,440,000 1,440,000
EE8
2 - 1,600,000 1,600,000
— 24,640,000 24,640,000
Exercisable at the end of the year —
RERATHE
Weighted average exercise price — HK$0.826 87T HK$0.826 7 7T

TTEE TR
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the estimated fair value
of the options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at the
date of grant is approximately HK$13,841,000.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price HK$1.180
Exercise price HK$0.826
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 45.44%
Dividend yield 3.52%
Risk-free interest rate 2.03%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the share prices of comparable companies over the
previous ten years.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$2,402,000 (2014: Nil) for the year ended 31 March 2015
in relation to share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme by the Company.

25. LR BEBNSRE)

BXNMBENBRETE(E)

HE2015FE3A3MBILEFE  BAR
FEE AR 2 2 BB L B
B2 st A F(EA) 513,841,000/ 7T ©

—IEA R E BRI E BN hBAE
ZRFE - s EBREZ AFEMAZ
BHYNBRIDENEEZ KIETE - B
Pt 2 BEFEE T TBEBRR 2 TEE
ML IRNET - ZRE 28 A BB
T

Bz fE 1.1807%8 7T
7B 0.826 7T
s S HR 104
TE BRI I8 45.44%
IR B & 3.52%
f2 [ P ) 2.03%

BRI IR TR AR E T A LB A R
BB KIEMERE °

AEBBEREZ 201563 A31 HILEF
EEREBARRRBEE X AFREER
IR IR AR 2 RS @ 5L
2,402,000 BT (20144 = &) ©

“ER-REER TSR (BB ERERAE 0 133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W05 W B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2015 2 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

25.

134

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25
September 2014. The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contribution that the eligible participants have made or may
make to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for a period of ten years commencing on the effective date
of the Share Option Scheme.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company to
subscribe for the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance
by the Company’s shareholders.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the period as the board of
directors may determine in granting the option but in any event
not exceeding ten years from the date of grant.

25. LR BEBNSRE)

BRESE

RRAERIE 2014 F9 A 25 BB BHIR
AR B ([ B RRRERTEL D) -
BB HERT B AR B F - SRR LA
BRREREERSHEC MK R
REBEL 2B - BRERTEZBX
Hh B BT 8 2 £ AT -

REBBERETE - ARREFESARA
SEXAKEREESEZ AREZFR
FZMBRARZENES EE - B
B FBXALT BF - #HERm - RE
B ABA BEASERBRLOAR
AR AIRRAD 2 RBRAE

RIR R & R A RA T E AR
TR AIRECBEBRES R 2 RER
NEE - EHTEHBARARTREE
TR 2 30% ° TE RS IR QAR ER
FEBEZIBERAT - REA—FREMR
ERATERE R AR L 2 Bk
K2 BETRETETRNEE ™MSHE
BARNRMEMEAESEHTRMNZ1% °
A ZRRABUIENTESREHZ
BRI S K 2 In 8B AN A RIAR AR
2 0.1% X {& {8 #& i 5,000,000 % 7T -
BIZES BRI AR AR

ENBRER - ARAERARR AN
187 ERERBIEZNRE - B
RAREREEE I RN ESSE
EZEREBRERR (MR EHEH
BT+ ) REIRE T AT
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

26.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

25. LR BEBNSRE)

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal

value of the Company’s share.

No option under the Share Option Scheme was granted since

BREsT8E)

TEERAARESET - HERTSE
B ()R BEARRRD 2 WHE
(W EERTLAHAEEEARDZF
HIRTHE : Ri)ARRKRO 2EEZ

RIBBEAERTE - AR RNZETE

its adoption. &I AR R AR o
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 26. A Fl#HME
Company b 3/
Retained
Share profits/
Share options (Accumulated
premium reserve losses) Total
REBRH/
RiyERE - BRERKE (RHER) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT
At 1 April 2013 R2013%4A 1R 41,618 - (192) 41,426
Profit for the year and FARNREE
total comprehensive FEMWAEE
income for the year — — 50,399 50,399
Dividends recognised as ERRED KRS
distribution (Note 13) (FiEE13) - - (50,146) (50,146)
At 31 March 2014 201453 A31H 41,618 — 61 41,679
Profit for the year and total FRRMREE
comprehensive income FEMAERE
for the year - — 8,770 8,770
Capitalisation issue BB (30,000) - - (30,000)
Issue of new shares EEilan) 216,000 - - 216,000
Expense incurred in connection HBTHRNEEZFY
with issue of new shares (8,267) — — (8,267)
Recognition of equity-settled WEREREE
share-based payments AR BERENE R - 2,402 — 2,402
At 31 March 2015 201543 A31H 219,351 2,402 8,831 230,584

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE
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27.

136

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amount to
approximately HK$1,233,000 (2014: HK$1,249,000) for the
year, and represent contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

27. RIREFETE

AEERAERBNEERE TR
BMERTERETE - FTEINEEBNA
SENEE AXEAEFNESE
e

AREBHFEEE T BRI E
REBRIEFNAEINKE - NEEEA
BEF RN —TE B 2 L AR ARRENE
EERHETARBILE - REEHR
@A S E EERNIELEE R

BT
oA °

AEERGEABEZREME2EKRER
H R SR HY 4B 7 2 4) /1,283,000 T
(20144 : 1,249,000/87T) * BAAEE
BIRZ ST EIR T TN L R 2 E 5t
EIETAIHER o
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 28. BELIKE

HBRELTHNRS

(a) Transactions with related parties @

During the year, the Group entered into the following RAFEEHME  AEESEEER

significant transactions with related parties:

I THIEARS :

N\

2015 2014
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’'000
RESME BB XHHEH BETT BT T
Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Rental expenses for 197 254
Ms. Kwan Lai Man premises (Note (i))
(executive directors MERSHAL
of the Company) (MF3EG)
ZITRER
HEREL T (RREMITESE)
Ms. Qiu Shu Fang Rental expenses for - 81
(mother of Mr. Pang Siu Hin) premises (Note (i)
RS 2+ MERSHEZ
(2211 E2E) (PE ()
Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical Packing costs 10,293 6,488
(a company controlled by (Note (i)
Mr. Pang Siu Hin and BEERA (FI3E (i)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man)
RAERI%E Research and 66 132
(RELITERER development expenses
FARBE X T3S AR]) (Note (i)
RS (B3 (iii))
Brighten Hong Sales of goods 7,735 9,179
(a company controlled (Note (iv))
by a relative of EmiHE
Mr. Pang Siu Hin) (MF3E (iv)
SHIBTT
(REIITREZ
—EBRBES 2 A a])

“E-AFFER

TSR (BB ZRER AT
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

138

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Notes:

i) The rental expenses for premises payable to the above
related parties are based on tenancy agreements entered into
between the parties involved. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, these transactions have been entered into on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group’s business.

(ii) Products packed by Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical were carried
out in the normal course of business at mutually agreed prices
and terms.

(iii) Research and development service was provided by Tai Wo
Tong Pharmaceutical based on mutually agreed terms.

(iv)  The sales to Brighten Hong were carried out in the normal
course of business at mutually agreed prices and terms.

Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of outstanding balances with related parties of
the Group and the Company at the end of each reporting
period are set out in Notes 19, 21 and 22.

Guarantees provided by related parties

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s undrawn banking facilities
were secured by () unlimited joint and several guarantee
from Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man; (ii)
personal guarantees from Mr. Pang Siu Hin to the extent
of HK$21,225,000; and (iii) personal guarantees from
Ms. Kwan Lai Man to the extent of HK$20,000,000. These
guarantees from Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man
were released upon the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

28. EERFEE#)

(a)

(b)

(c)

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2015

HEREL RS (#)
fisE -

0 ENLARESTMEEESMX
VAB BRI 4077 BT SLEOTH & 1 k7R
HE - ARBEERR ZEXR
SR ER B EGRAL N AL
—R R B EEEBERRIL -

(i)  ARMEREETIZET HE M ER
FIEFRN—REBRBETEEE

]
g °

(i)  AFNERILETHIRE 7715 F AR
IR AR o

V) RSEETELNHEEDRATE
T5iBAZ TP 1R 7 13 E RO B8 S I
ST ©

BEEAERNAEREER

REREHEARE - BASKH
KRR R E T KR EBEHA
TEEFMITE19 « 21 22 o

RELRHENER

MR2014%F3A31H A&EE 2
RAEBRITEE B () ZPITEE
RABEZEX T 2ERG AR K
BRIER: ZPITRERE
21,225,000 7T 2 A AER + &
(iif) B B = 20 £ %3 81 20,000,000 %
TTZEAABRERER - ZFKR
BEINEERBBRER T 2 #&
RN R AR B AP ER
& ERRR o
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(d) Guarantees provided to related parties

Details of guarantees provided to related parties of the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out in

Note 34.

(e) Compensation of key management

personnel

The emoluments of the Company’s directors, who are also
identified as members of key management of the Group,

are set out in Note 11.

On 30 July 2013, Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical has assumed
responsibility for a bank loan granted to the Group of
approximately HK$70,072,000. As the Group has obtained a
legal release from the bank, the Group extinguished the bank EERR  AEEFERITER

loan.

The following table discloses movement of the bank borrowings
during the year ended 31 March 2014.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

28. EERFEE#)
() BEESRENER

34 o

() XEEEASHRM

29. FEHFBRERH

ERERTERNES -

MRS A RS R AN A R RE
TRENEROF BN M

ARBEF(NAAEEEREE
BB ) HFr BB I FE 11

MR201347 A30H » K& RI%E &K
EBERMAT0,072,0008 TRITE
TEEEEL - BEEAEBEEHIFTERE

TREBENEZE2014F3A31 BIEF

HK$’000

BRTT
At 1 April 2013 201344 A1 8 83,716
New bank loans raised FMLIRITE R 25,992
Repayments of bank loans EBIFITER (39,653)
Extinguishment of a bank loan BERITEN (70,072)
Exchange adjustments bE 54, 8 B 17

At 31 March 2014

M201443 A31H

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE
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29.

140

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

On the same day, the Group agreed to make payment on
the debt of HK$70,072,000 to Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical.
HK$21,046,000 was settled through offsetting the amount due
from Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical and HK$49,026,000 was
settled through offsetting the amounts due from Mr. Pang Siu
Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man.

The following table discloses movement of the amount due from
Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical during the year ended 31 March
2014.

20. FEFBERF (&)

AA  AEEREMREB AT E R
X £470,072,0007 7t ° 21,046,00078 7T
BRI S R A M E BB R IB M EE
{8 + 149,026,000 % st 8l i 1B 1K $5 f&
W1k kR EBER T RIEMES
1} °

ik

A

TEREBENHE2014FE3A31HIEF
[ R JFE YK AN S B 2 B 1) S ) o

HK$’000

#BETRT

At 1 April 2013 72013454 A 18 —

Arising on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBRARIFTES 2 KA 21,046
Offsetting the debt to SRR & B BB S

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (21,046)

At 31 March 2014

MR20144F3A31H

Dividend payable of HK$20,000,000 declared by the
Company on 15 October 2013 to Genwealth was settled
through offsetting the amounts due from Mr. Pang Siu Hin and
Ms. Kwan Lai Man during the year ended 31 March 2014.

The following table discloses movement of the amounts due
from directors during the year ended 31 March 2014.

NABIR2013FE10 A 158 FT = Ik fE
¥ $7 & A9 A% B 20,000,000 7% 7T E
HE2014F3 A31 HILFEHBIKH
FERZ DOTRE A RBBEEX THFIES
ff o

TREBENEE2014F3 831 HILEF
EARWEEZIENES -

HK$’000
BETT
At 1 April 2013 20134 A 1H 28,561
Advances to Mr. Pang Siu Hin and ME DT ER
Ms. Kwan Lai Man PR T # 40,465
Offsetting the debt to AT BUEE(E TS
Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (49,026)
Dividend declared to Genwealth SRTITEHRE (20,000)

At 31 March 2014

R2014F 3 A31H
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As referred to in Note 13, on 3 July 2013, the Company
declared and paid an interim dividend to Genwealth by way
of distribution in specie of all the issued shares in Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical indirectly held by the Company. The net assets
of Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical and its subsidiary (the “Disposal
Group”) at the date of disposal were as follows:

30. HEMNB AT

AP RE 13 AT - 20137 A3 H -
RRRAB YD IRA R RIFEZ RSB AM
EREMEBTRONSTARAITEE
IR RS R B S - BB - KM
FRENHENBAR(HESE] K
BEFEWT

HK$’000
B¥ETT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KRB EER
which control was lost: B &R -
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 8,896
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE 10,154
Inventories FE 1,174
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EWGRIE 1,568
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRIRS 1,031
Trade and other payables 2 5 REMERFRIE (1,524)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ER R RMB AR HIE (21,046)
Current tax liabilities BNEARi IR & (& (107)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 146
Cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELRIRZ ML -
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERITEB RIS 1,031

“ER-REER TEEE(BR)ZERERAE 141
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30.

142

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The results of the Disposal Group for the period from
1 April 2013 to 3 July 2013, which have been included
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, were as follows:

30. HEMB AT ®)

HEEEA2013F4 A1 HBE20134F
7THIEHHEMELE (BT ALEER
FEMEEKZIR)MAT

HK$’000

BETT
Revenue WA 174
Cost of sales SHERAR (2,599)
Administrative expenses TR (785)
Income tax expense FTSHiA X (31)
Loss for the period HAfIE 1R (3,241)

The net cash flows incurred by the Disposal Group for the
period from 1 April 2013 to 3 July 2013, which have been
included in the consolidated statement of cash flows, were as
follows:

HEEBHR2013F4 51 HE20134F
7 ASHEMELEZReREFA(E
FAGABEERER)OT ¢

HK$’000
BRTT
Operating activities 1 EED (3,702)
Investing activities KEES (504)
Net cash outflow e m FRE (4,206)
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31. KEHE

The Group as lessee FEEESEREA
e ~
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Minimum lease payments paid KEHETE TR
under operating leases IEAER
— Premises — W% 4,027 3,939
— Office equipment — WRERM 911 752
4,938 4,691
L J

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

N EHRERE - AEBERET A
LR ARRSIEHE R ASE
BEIERAT

e ~\

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETRT BT T

Within one year —FR 4,934 827

In the second to fifth years inclusive F_ETERF

(EEMFEEEEA) 3,513 769

8,447 1,596
& J

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEMENFTIRASERE S ERA
Group for its premises and office equipment. EREEN2HEE -
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31. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

31.

KREHE 2

FREERHER

R HIRERE - AEB S EERET

AT RRSAEHER K

Ve

<
2015

2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Within one year R—FA 165 293
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_EFERF
(BEMEBEEN) 270 489
435 782
& J
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EREE
Group F5£E
(" \
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Capital expenditure contracted for BRI AERELE
but not provided for in the SR EER
consolidated financial statements BEARRY
in respect of
— acquisition of property, — BEEE
plant and equipment BB K w5t 1,786 860
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33. LITIGATION

At 31 March 2015, the Group was involved in the following legal
proceedings:

(@)

In 2012, Hin Sang Hong (HK) (a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company) discovered an infringement
of its intellectual property right by Aomori (Japan)
Pharmaceutical Limited, whereby the trademark and
copyrights subsisting in the packing and drawings of Hin
Sang Health Star (Granules) ($T £ H -+ 2 X BRIFH])
and Hin Sang Deluxe Exquisite Packing Milk Supplement
(Granules) (FTEZEERIFRYIZFERIFRE]) were infringed.
As such, Hin Sang Hong (HK) initiated legal proceeding
against Aomori (Japan) Pharmaceutical Limited in this
regard for trademark infringement and/or passing off.
Upon commencement of the legal action, Aomori (Japan)
Pharmaceutical Limited ceased all infringement acts. As
a result, the action was not pursued any further and was
in the status of on hold. By Court Order dated 25 June
2015, the claim against Aomori (Japan) Pharmaceutical
Limited was discontinued.

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE

33.

B
MR2015F3A31H KEBEBEMNUAT
JEREREA

@ M2012%F > ARAZ2EWEAR

AIPTEMT(BEA)ERBAER
BHEARARIRILEMBERE -
Bt STHERBEEE2FBERORE
RTEEEERFENRBER A
PR KRB R ENEERRERR
Lo Bt - PTET(EE) sttt
AARERBEFRARIREHER
HIEEERRBEITANER
e REMAEEITER  BAR
EREBEEBRAREFLEMER
REITR - Bt - RSB EERE
E#E— 2178 - WERBEEAM
S e IRIEBEIA2015F 6 A25H
ZEEWT  HEAASTHRBE

BRAR BRI -

145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W05 W B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2015 2 20154 3 A 31 H1FF/E

33. LITIGATION (Continued)

146

(b)

On 18 May 2011, Hin Sang Hong (HK) entered into a
distribution agreement with Kingdom Overseas Limited
(“Kingdom Overseas”) pursuant to which Hin Sang Hong
(HK) was appointed as the exclusive distributor in Hong
Kong and Macau for three infant formula products.
In July and August 2011, Hin Sang Hong (HK) issued
purchase orders in respect of the infant formula products
but Kingdom Overseas failed to deliver some of the
products to Hin Sang Hong (HK) and therefore, in breach
of the distribution agreement. Further, in February 2012,
Kingdom Overseas issued a termination notice to Hin
Sang Hong (HK) to terminate the distribution agreement
forthwith. As such, Hin Sang Hong (HK) initiated legal
proceeding against Kingdom Overseas for breach of
distribution agreement and claim for loss and damages
in the amount of approximately HK$54.3 million and
the substantial proportion of the damages claim comes
from a claim for loss of future profit due to the breach of
distribution agreement by Kingdom Overseas. Likewise,
Kingdom Overseas also launched a counterclaim against
Hin Sang Hong (HK) for an approximate sum of HK$51.0
million as damages for alleged loss of future profit for
unable to secure an alternative distributor replacing Hin
Sang Hong (HK). On 6 January 2015, lawyers representing
Kingdom Overseas has formally ceased to act for
Kingdom Overseas in the above action. The counterclaim
in the sum of HK$51.0 million against Hin Sang Hong (HK)
was dismissed by the Court on 5 February 2015. Since
then Hin Sang Hong (HK) proceeded with its claim against
Kingdom Overseas alone. As at the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements, the legal
proceeding was still ongoing.

33.
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. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

At 31 March 2015, the Company has provided corporate
guarantees of HK$26,790,000 (2014: HK$6,790,000) to banks
in respect of banking facilities granted to subsidiaries. At 31
March 2015, no amount in respect of such banking facilities has
been utilised by the subsidiaries (2014: Nil).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company (comprising issued share capital and
reserves).

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing
ratio. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of the capital, and will balance the
gearing ratio through the payment of dividends and new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

34. BIKEREYN

MR20156F3 A31H @ AQABFEFTH
BARIMETRE MBTIREQRER
26,790,00078 7T (20144 : 6,790,000/
JL) o R2015F3A31H » 25K B
NEIWABAZEFRITELE (2014 F -
) o

Oy

EXEREE

AEEERHERURRAEE Y B
B SEE - R RAECETSER
A2 BT EAR R ARRE 2 B3 -
AEEBBERAEFRFTE -

35.

AEBNENEBBESARRIEE AR
hEa (BREBITRAREE) -

AEEZRERBEL R 2 AEERAE
Rt - AEEEZRERNKARSEE
ARz ERRR - Wi E B IAE K&
TR - AR BT AR B EIR A &
BAFEEREBREL X -

AEERHEREREREZELAEL
AT

f 2015 b 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Debt (i) &7 (i) — —
Equity (i) 1 (i) 334,682 94,295
Gearing ratio BEAXREELE - —
L J
()  Debtincludes long- and short-term borrowings. () EEEERBREHER-

(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE

iy HEEBEAEEMABEERNRFE -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

36. @I H

@ =@mI AR5

Group XxEHE
4
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT IT
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables EFRENFIE
Trade and other receivables B 5 M E AR GRTE 22,667 33,407
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 264,393 65,059
287,060 98,466
Financial liabilities SMARl
Financial liabilities at FEEIE AT E 2
amortised cost THEE
Trade and other payables 5 R EMENRIE 26,148 24,317
Dividend payable FERTAR B - 30,000
26,148 54,317
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €M I A%
(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued) (@ &mTAERIE)
Company b /N
4 \
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT IT
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables EFRENFIE
Amount due from a subsidiary U — B B R R F A 33,963 =
Dividend receivable RIS S - 30,300
Bank balances IRITHEBR 204,710 —
238,673 30,300
Financial liabilities eMaR
Financial liabilities at B A E S
amortised cost PHEE
Accruals EETE R 20 —
Amount due to a subsidiary e —REIM B A R FE - 239
Dividend payable FERTAIRE - 30,000
20 30,239
. J
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

150

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, bank balances, trade and other
payables and dividend payable. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with certain of these financial instruments
include market risk (including foreign currency risk,
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain financial assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, hence risk exposure
to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group has not
entered into any forward contract to hedge against the
foreign currency risk exposure. However, the management
of the Group will consider to hedge these balances should
the need arise.

(b)

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2015
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. TR T A%
() Financial risk management objectives and (b) HBEMREREBFERBE
policies (Continued) (&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SN B (4F)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency ¥R E BB 4 R - A& B LA
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at BiEcEBEEREREEZ
the end of the reporting period are as follows: BREEWT :
N
2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETRT BT T
Monetary assets denominated in: LA N7 IMNEFHER B EE -
— RVB — AR 14,469 44,661
— United States dollar (“{US$”) —x(lZEx]) 6 581
— New Taiwan dollar (‘“NT$”) —#e%(Hesl)) 2,111 2,932

Monetary liabilities denominated in: LA 7| SMNEHEM EEBE -

— RMB — AR 6,104 4,397
— Us$ — X - 343
— NT$ — ek § 1,187 | 3,860
As HK$ is pegged to US$, the currency risk associated BB TEETE - BEET
with US$ and HK$ is considered minimal. The Group is RETZEBRBRIEAEK - K
mainly exposed to the effect of fluctuation in RMB and EEEEERARE KA B
NTS$. BB o
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

152

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB and NT$.
10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit and
a negative number indicates a decrease in post-tax profit
where HK$ strengthens 10% against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against the
relevant foreign currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.

(b)

36. EmT A%

MR RERERBERBK
(%)

SNEERBR (AR

TREEAEEHBETHEARE
K e B R T #10% 2 8%
REFIT 2 10% IV AERRR A X
ZEIE A B BN a2 B PR
RZ8REL X - RIS EH I
EERNAIE R BEE )« FF A -
IRt E SR AE T A RSN
B IHE10%1E S T R 8 1R 4 7
g BHRAIKRB BRI
FR A - sl ARRRSNE B2 B
10%ME - $hafKEELERF
MRz FE -

Sensitivity analysis BURE 2
(" \
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Impact of RMB AR#zRE
Profit or loss B (837) (4,026)
Impact of NT$ Faktene
Profit or loss b= § (92)) 93
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the RARIESRAE  BRERESTAR

sensitivity analysis is not necessarily representative of
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the exposure at the
end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is primarily exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the credit risk of the Group is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation or high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

“E-REFR TEEE (BR) ZERERAE

36. EmT A%

(b)

MR RERERBERBK
(%)

AR mk

AREBTRAREETF SIRITHF
KB 2 N HENRER

ARREERRANREMATZ
MEREBRIY BN - L ER
SURE DM

S8R

REBRESHEERE - XEEZ
RAXEERRBERRHEHFT
AEBTEEMEHAKE LR
MIFER - JTHIRBERERE FFR
MEMBEERCHEREMEE L
AREE -

AEEREEERR  AEEE
BEEEZR—XKh BEETE
EERE  EEHURLEMER
R ARERERERIRETTE) - W
ElEHER - o - REERE
o B PR 4 R 2 B %M Y R M
BHERRZ AT B S5 - ARER
BRI D S 5R A 2 5 2 R (E
Bepltms ARBESERRG
AEEZEERBRERARIE

RBEL T EEARER - RHE
EXSHFHAEBAFRER
BEARMEET B RTR
B8R o
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. T A#)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HMEEREEBEERBE
policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk REESRER
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors Eﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂiﬁ/\ RTINS
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents ERTHFEREERRTHN
deemed adequate by the management to finance the fﬁ@&fﬁé—r{ﬁm7k$ SPNGIEN
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations EE 2 ER ﬁi\éf  OREIR
in cash flows. EMERBZHE

TERFMIATKSESRAEL

BRBRTIHER  ZXRTIR
BEERAEIRMARSRER
2 RBENASAEEAEL
BRZRFEH - eMBEZD

financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment R b2 e ER B HEE -
dates.
Liquidity table REBEEIIFK
Group K@
On demand or Total Total
Non-derivative less than 1t0o3  undiscounted carrying
financial liabilities 1 month months cash flows amount
KRR &
FiEEMAR BEKSIR-EA —-E=@A pid £ IREESH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB ABTL RETT BRI
2015
Trade and other payables E5R
EMERFE 21,920 4,228 26,148 26,148
AN
2014
Trade and other payables BHR
Hft N 0R 15,230 9,087 24,317 24,317
Dividend payable FERRE 30,000 - 30,000 30,000
45,230 9,087 54,317 54,317
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. @I A#®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HMEEREEBEERBE
policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity table (Continued) REE SR (A
Company b /NG|
On demand or Total Total
Non-derivative less than 1to3  undiscounted carrying
financial liabilities 1 month months cash flows amount
FHRHE
FiTERMAR EEXEOR—@A —-£=@A nEHR REESR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT AT AT AETTL

2015
Accruals 2R ( 20 - 20 20)
AN
2014
Amount due to a subsidiary ER—EREARTA 239 - 239 239
Dividend payable ERHRE 30,000 - 30,000 30,000
30,239 - 30,239 30,239

37. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. REHBEREN

On 1 June 2015, Hin Sang Group Holding Limited, a wholly R2015F6 A1H A RAA 22 &HK
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the agreement BARNTESEIZERER A AR
with Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man for the acquisition MEREE , 2EE BITRAEZ DHT
of the entire issued share capital of Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical EERBESZLZLEHE RER
at a consideration of HK$9,800,000. The transaction was 9,800,000/ 7T ° 2R %M 2015F 6 A
completed on 1 June 2015. At the date of approval of these 1B - RALE B mERERER
consolidated financial statements, the directors was still in HY - ERDERTE L ig =18 2 BI%
the midst of determining the financial effect of the aforesaid TE o

acquisition.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

ToAF P55 B 2

OPERATING RESULTS

o e
HEXE

For the year ended 31 March
HESAS1HILLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 | HK$’000

BT AT BT AT | B%TE

Revenue ON 287,320 360,414 235,114 253,171 214,959

Gross Profit EF 81,589 101,469 98,410 142,341 122,663

Profit for the year F Rg A 15,725 22,067 15,383 49,704 11,051

—
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BE  BER#ER
For the year ended 31 March
BE3A31HILEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 | HK$’000

BT AT BT BET | B%TE

Non-current assets ERBEE 17,373 19,396 23,990 42,600 48,610

Current assets RBEE 79,469 117,645 179,336 115,684 313,504

Total assets HEHE 96,842 137,041 203,326 158,284 362,114

Current liabilities REBAR 38,808 54,629 101,294 63,989 27,432

Net current assets RENEERE 40,661 63,016 78,042 51,695 286,072
Total assets less BERER

current liabilities REAR 58,034 82,412 102,032 94,295 334,682

Non-current liabilities  JEREI& & — 2,186 6,280 — -

Net assets HEPHE 58,034 80,226 95,752 94,295 334,682
Capital and reserves BX R Eia

Share capital &N 234 30,000 30,000 30,000 80,000

Reserves Gl 57,800 50,226 65,752 64,295 254,682

58,034 80,226 95,752 94,295 334,682

)
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